
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 3
Manager's Report

SR 6 A General Manager's Rpt 5
SR 6 A Attachment General Manager's Report Firma
Rpt 6
SR 6 A GM Administrative Services Officer Rpt January 23
SR 6 A Attachment to ASO report 24
SR 6 A GM Conservation Rpt 25
SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Rpt 26
SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 1 well level summaries 28
SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 3 SR wells plot 29
SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 4 SS wells plot by yr 30
SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 5 SS statistical well plot 31
SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 7 SS last 5 yrs 32
SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 6 SS min max avg 33
SR 6 A GM Fin Mgr 1 Rpt-January, 2015 34
SR 6 A GM Fire Chief Report January 42
SR 6 A GM Fire January 2015 Rpt 44
SR 6 GM Rpt Facilities and Resources Report 45
SR 6 GM Rpt Facilities and Resources Attachment 46
SR 6 A GM Wastewater Supr Jan 49

Consideration to Approve the Expenditure Report for December
2014

SR 7 A Expenditure Report for Month of January, 2015 50
Consideration to Approve the Minutes from the December 18,
2014 Board of Director's Meeting

SR 7 B DRAFT Minutes for Dec 18  2014 Reg Mtg 58
Consideration to Authorize Execution of Revised Memorandum
of Understanding between the Cambria Community Services
District and the Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve
Regarding Donations and Merchandise Sales on the Fiscalini
Ranch Preserve

SR 7 C Consideration to Approve Revised MOU
between CCSD_FFRP Regarding Donations on FRP 62
SR 7 C Attachment revised MOU Between the CCSD
and FFRP Regarding Donations and  Sales on FFRP 63

Continued Public Hearing Regarding Adoption of Resolution 01-
2015 Revising Enhanced Water Conservation Measures,
Restrictions on the Use of Potable Water and Maximum Water
Use Allotments

SR 8 A Contiinured  Public Hearing on Use of Water
Allotments 66
SR 8 A Attachment 1 Reso 01 2015 Revising Enhanced
Water Cons Measure relating to Use of Allotment 68

Consideration of 2013/2014 Fiscal Year Financial Audit
Presentation by Bob Crosby

1



SR 9 A Consideration of 2013 2014 FY Financial Audit
Presentation by Bob Crosby 76
SR 9 A Attachment to Financial Audit 78

Discussion and Consideration of Proposed 2015 Board Goals,
Ad Hoc Committee and Director Assignments

SR 9 B Discussion and Consideration of Proposed
Board Goals and Committees 122

Discussion and Consideration of the CCSD Board of Director's
Bylaws

SR 9 C Consideration of Bylaws January 2015 124
SR 9 C 01 Attachment Bylaws (Annotated with State
Law References) 125
SR 9 C 02 Attachment 137

Discussion and Consideration of Whether to Implement the
Emergency Water Supply Operating Charge Associated with the
Startup of the Emergency Water System Project

SR 9 D Discussion and Consideration of When to
Implement the Operational Rates for the Emergency
Water System 160

Consideration and Vote on the Election for a Special District
Representative on the Local Agency Formation Commission
(LAFCO)

SR 9 E Vote for LAFCO Special District Representative 162
SR 9 E Attachment Vote for LAFCO
Ballot_and_Candidate_Statements 163

2



   

 

 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING 
Thursday, January 29, 2015 – 12:30 PM 

VETERANS MEMORIAL BUILDING, 1000 MAIN ST., CAMBRIA, CA 

 
AGENDA 

This agenda is prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. By listing a topic on 
this agenda, the District’s Board of Directors has expressed its intent to discuss and act on each item. In 
addition to any action identified in the summary description of each item, the action that may be taken by 
the Board of Directors shall include: a referral to staff with specific requests for information; continuance; 
specific direction to staff concerning the policy or mission of the item; discontinuance of consideration; 
authorization to enter into negotiations and execute agreements pertaining to the item; adoption or 
approval; and disapproval. 
 
Copies of the staff reports or other documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the 
agenda are on file in the Office of the District Clerk, available for public inspection during District business 
hours. If requested, the agenda and supporting documents shall be made available in alternative formats 
to persons with a disability. The District Clerk will answer any questions regarding the agenda. 
 
1. OPENING 

A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Establishment of Quorum 
D. Report from Closed Session 

 
2. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS/PRESENTATIONS  

A. Present Certificates of Appreciation to Students who Created Banners to 
Encourage Sustainable Conservation Practices and to the YMCA Director 
Dan Hartzell, Shawna Volpa, and Community Volunteer Taylor Hilden 
 

3. SPECIAL REPORTS 
A. Sheriff’s Department Report 

 
4. AGENDA REVIEW: ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND PULLED CONSENT ITEMS 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT (LIMITED TO 30 MINUTES) 

Members of the public may now address the Board on any item of interest within the jurisdiction 
of the Board but not on its agenda today. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Board cannot 
discuss or act on items not on the agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes. Speaker slips 
(available at the entry) should be submitted to the District Clerk. 

 
6. MANAGER’S AND BOARD REPORTS 

A. Manager’s Report 
B. Ad Hoc Committee Reports and Other Related Required Board Member   

Reports (Committee Meetings and meetings attended at CCSD expense) 
 
 

3



CCSD Agenda 
Thursday, January 29, 2015 
Page 2 

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters on the consent calendar are to be approved by one motion. If Directors wish to 
discuss a consent item other than simple clarifying questions, a request for removal may be 
made. Such items are pulled for separate discussion and action after the consent calendar as a 
whole is acted upon. 
A. Consideration to Approve the Expenditure Report for December 2014 
B. Consideration to Approve the Minutes from the December 18, 2014 Board 

of Director's Meeting 
C. Consideration to Authorize Execution of Revised Memorandum of 

Understanding between the Cambria Community Services District and the 
Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve Regarding Donations and 
Merchandise Sales on the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve 
 

8. HEARINGS AND APPEALS 
A. Continued Public Hearing Regarding Adoption of Resolution 01-2015 

Revising Enhanced Water Conservation Measures, Restrictions on the Use 
of Potable Water and Maximum Water Use Allotments 
 

9. REGULAR BUSINESS 
A. Consideration of 2013/2014 Fiscal Year Financial Audit Presentation by Bob 

Crosby 
B. Discussion and Consideration of Proposed 2015 Board Goals, Ad Hoc 

Committee and Director Assignments 
C. Discussion and Consideration of the CCSD Board of Director's Bylaws 
D. Discussion and Consideration of Whether to Implement the Emergency 

Water Supply Operating Charge Associated with the Startup of the 
Emergency Water System Project 

E. Consideration and Vote on the Election for a Special District Representative 
on the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT (CONTINUED) 
Members of the public who have not had the opportunity to speak on item 5 due to the limitation 
of time may now address the Board on any item of interest within the jurisdiction of the Board but 
not on its agenda today. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Board cannot discuss or act on 
items not on the agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes. Speaker slips (available at the 
entry) should be submitted to the District Clerk. 

 
11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) 

Requests from Board members to receive feedback, direct staff to prepare information, and/or 
request a formal agenda report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal 
action can be taken except to direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda by 
majority vote. 
 

12. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government 

Code Section 54957.8 Agency Designated Representatives: Shelline 
Bennett and General Manager Jerry Gruber; Employee Organization: 
Cambria Firefighters/International Association of Firefighters 
(IAFF)4635 

4



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.A. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 29, 2015   Subject:  MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 
Administration 
 
On behalf of the CCSD Board of Directors and staff, we would like to thank the Community for 
their continued conservation efforts.  Water production continues to be reduced.   
 
On January 20, 2015 at approximately 1:15 P.M the Emergency Water Supply Project (EWS) 
went into full production. I would like to thank the community of Cambria, the CCSD Board of 
Directors, CCSD staff, Tom Gray the Districts Public Information Officer, the County Board of 
Supervisors and the County staff, the RWQCB and staff, the Division of Drinking Water staff, 
CCI and CDM Smith, and RBF consulting for working collaboratively during the past twelve 
months in order for the Emergency Water Supply Project to be fully operational. We will 
continue to move forward with the Environmental Impact Report and the Regular Costal 
Development Permit during 2015. The Emergency Water Supply Project will be operational for 
the next three months to make sure everything is functioning properly, monitoring and 
sampling are ongoing and CCSD staff are properly trained.  I more than likely have 
inadvertently overlooked someone in my recognitions and for that I sincerely apologize. 
 
I wanted to take a few minutes to reflect on the goals for 2014 and bring the Board of Directors 
up to date on the progress that was made during 2014 on those adopted goals. 
 
Goal No. 1- Rate Adjustments. The District was successful in complying with the procedural 
requirements of Proposition 218 and passing rates relating to the funding and operational 
components for the EWS.  
 
Goal No. 2- Alternative Water Supply Project. The Emergency Water Supply Project was put 
into full operation on January 20, 2015. As part of my General Managers Report for February, I 
will review the change orders relating to the EWS and the total project cost to date for the 
EWS.  
 
Goal No. 3- East Ranch Improvements. On April 14, 2014 David Foote of Firma presented the 
Fiscalini Ranch Community Park Phase 1 Design Development Plan documents. The attached 
information is part of the CCSD Board of Directors Packet today and will be discussed as part 
of the Goals for 2015. The Plan included a design development site plan, grading and grading 
plan, phase 1 cost estimates and preliminary drainage calculations. The Plan identifies the 
critical next steps and required funding for phase 1 of the East Ranch Improvements to move 
forward. Additional accomplishments relating to the East Ranch were the removal of several 
large Eucalyptus trees. Additional work is needed to remove the remaining stumps and roots of 
the Eucalyptus trees on the East Ranch. Overall progress was made relating to improvements 
to the East Ranch Phase 1 project.  
 
Attachment:  Firma Fiscalini Ranch Community Park Phase 1 Design Development Plan  

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



SR 6 A Addendum to GM Report 
January 29, 2015 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING   

JANUARY 29, 2015 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES OFFICER REPORT 

 
UTILITY BILLS: 
 
The programing for the Operational Emergency Water Supply Project Rates has been finalized.  
 
The new test pilot program for meters with the new technology has begun.  This pilot program, 
allows the meters electronic signal to be sent directly to the Administrative Office on a daily 
basis which in turn allows the billing clerk to review the reports daily.  This will help to alleviate 
water loss.  When fully implemented it will allow the Water Department to suspend their need to 
read the meters while driving through town for up to two days.  We will keep you apprised of the 
progress as we make our way through the installation and technology training.   
 
STAGE 3 WATER EMERGENCY: 
 
We are continuing to process Permanent Resident forms requesting an increase in water 
allotments as we receive them. At the time of the writing of this report the following numbers 
represent the total number of requests for an increase in water allotments: 

• 2,054  permanent resident forms have been received and processed 
• 117 medical waivers have been received and processed 
• 37 exception approvals have been received and processed 
• 25 exception denials have been received and processed 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES:   
 
Recruitments:  
 
Wastewater Operator I or II: We held interviews for the two open Wastewater Positions. 
We hope to hire two operators by the middle of February. 
 
Water Treatment Operator I:  We continue to work through the hiring process for this position.  
 
Administrative Technician I: We are in the process of re-evaluating the needs of the 
Administrative Office and will be determining the needs of the organizations staffing level.  
 
Maintenance Technician I: We have closed this recruitment and will hold interviews very soon.   
We hope to hire an individual for this position by the end of February.    
 
PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS: 
  
There is only one pending response to the public record requests which have been received to 
date.  I have attached a spreadsheet which is used to track the number of public record 
requests received by the district.   
 
Submitted by: 
Monique Madrid 
Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk 
 
 
 
Attachment: 2015 Public Records Request spreadsheet 

23



PUBLIC RECORD REQUESTS FOR 2014

1

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

A B C D E F
  Date Name of 

Requestor
Request Staff time 

allocated
CCSD Response

1 (continued 
from 2014)

12/17/2014 LandWatch of SLO 
Co.

Various Agendas, Resolutions and Staff Reports 
related to EWS

3 hours Initial Response: 
12/18/2014          

Second Response 
12/26/2014          

Final Response  
1/9/2015

2 1/5/2015 Gregg Berge Copies of PSU applications etc. 30 minutes 1/20/2015
3 1/5/2015 Gregg Berge Copies of other applications etc. 30 minutes 1/20/2015
4 1/20/2015 Tony Church Various questions TBD pending

24



  BOARD OF DIRECTORS JANUARY 29, 2015  
CONSERVATION REPORT 

ADDENDUM TO THE GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 
 
Residential Water Surveys/Audits: 
 
As of January 1, 2015 there were 152 customers on our “Leak Report.” Of these customers 113 
properties were residential and the remaining 39 properties were commercial. The Water 
Department responded to 36 of the residential properties based on the property having higher 
than normal usage. The Administrative staff is working to contact the remaining residential 
customers via telephone as time allows. 
  
Retrofit Point Bank: 
 
As of 1/1/2015 the rebate point’s bank total is 7989 points. The individual fixture count 
breakdown is as follows: 
 

• Washing Machines =    679 
• Recirculating Pumps =    288  
• Toilets =      434 
• Aerators =    2166  
• Showerheads =   4422 

 
Rebates Total Points Bank:  7989 
 
Retrofit Upon Resale Bank:  4603 
 
Total Points Bank:           12,592 
 
 
Public Outreach & Training: 
 
Cortney Upthegrove attended two software training courses through Beacon Advanced 
Technology.  

25



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING –JANUARY 29, 2015 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

DISTRICT ENGINEER’S REPORT 
 
The following table summarizes activities from December 10, 2014 to January 16, 2015.  
A summary discussion on well levels also follows. 
 
Item 
No. 

Description Activities/Project Status 

1 Assistance to 
Water & 
Wastewater 
Operations 

• Assistance was provided to Wastewater operations for the 
completion of repairs and pump replacements at Lift Station 
9 on Moonstone Beach Drive, and Lift Station A1 on 
Sherwood.   Change Orders were prepared and issued to  
D-Kal Construction for revising the pump speeds at Station 
9, and for potholing inoperable bypass valves at Station A1.   

• A 1/14/2015 meeting was attended with consultant Bill Bellis, 
as well as Justin Smith, and Jerry Gruber on the need to 
replace the Fiscalini Water Tank due to the state of its 
corrosion and other deficiencies.   

2 Wastewater 
Treatment Plant 
Improvement 
Project – Enhanced 
Compliance Action 
(ECA)  

The next progress report to the RWQCB is due on February 24, 
2015.  Presentation of the project’s 10-percent design report is 
planned for April 24, 2015.   

3 Rodeo Grounds 
Pump Station 
Replacement and 
Stuart Street Tank 
3. 

There was no progress made this reporting period.  

4 Emergency Water 
Supply Project 

Completed contracting with RBF for the EIR to support the 
Emergency Water Supply Project’s regular Coastal 
Development Permit.  A second contract with RBF for providing 
an Adaptive Management Plan (AMP) during operation was also 
completed to coincide with Plant startup.  CDM Smith completed 
updates to the Project’s Operation Maintenance, and Monitoring 
Plan, which was subsequently approved by the RWQCB and 
Division of Drinking Water.  The RWQCB also approved the 
financial assurance bond obtained by the District to cover 
potential evaporation pond repairs.  As of the date of this staff 
report, (1/16/2015), Plant operation is schedule to begin on 
Tuesday, 1/20/2015.  
 
On January 8, 2015, staff reviewed the Project site with Cal Fire 
representatives, CCSD Fire, and CCI.  Several 
recommendations were made, which are currently being 
completed.  Their most substantial recommendations were the 
addition of a 10,000 gallon water tank or hydrant service, as well 
as additional roadway base.   These items are planned to be 
added to the project as change order items.    Staff is currently 
reviewing all change order items on the contract to date with 
CCI.  
 

26



 
 

 

Other Project related activities occurred on providing the County 
with information to support the Project’s Proposition 84, 
Integrated Regional Water Management grant.    

5 Long Term Water 
Supply Project 

A conference call is planned for 1/22/2015 to review how the 
Emergency Water Supply Project will be considered by the 
Corps team within the EIS being developed for the long-term 
water supply project.   

6 County Water 
Resource 
Development 
Advisory 
Committee 
(WRAC) 

Attended the 1/7/2015 WRAC meeting, during which, an 
excellent summary presentation was made on the 2014-enacted 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).  This 
essentially requires public agencies within high and medium 
priority groundwater basins to form Groundwater Sustainability 
Agencies (GSAs) in order to complete Groundwater 
Sustainability Plans.  Because the San Simeon and Santa Rosa 
basins do not fall into the State’s high or medium categories, the 
formation of, or participation into a GSA by the CCSD would be 
optional at this time as opposed to meeting the SGMA’s specific 
completion milestones.  
Other key WRAC activities include the County’s pending 
completion of its biennial Resource Management System report. 

 
The attached water well level summary table shows the Santa Rosa and San Simeon 
supply well levels as of January 12, 2015 with the San Simeon production wells at an 
average of 20.49 feet above sea level, the Santa Rosa well SR4 level at 51.50 feet 
above sea level, and the average of wells SR1 and SR3 levels at 30.79 feet above 
mean sea level.  
 
The attached production report shows that the December 2014 production of 33.44 
acre-feet was the lowest on record since the summary table began in  1988. This 
indicates that Cambrians are continuing to do an outstanding job in conserving water. 
Comparing December 2013 production against December 2014, shows a reduction of 
38 percent.  Comparing the January through December cumulative production totals 
between 2013 and 2014 shows a reduction of 36 percent.  As of the end of December 
2014, 266.31 acre-feet (87 million gallons) of production water has been 
conserved/reduced when compared against the same cumulative period during 2013.   
 
The rainfall occurring during the month of December 2014 totaled 8.81 inches at the 
CCSD’s well SS-1 rain gage.  As of the end of December 2014, the cumulative 
seasonal rainfall total at the well SS-1 rain gage was 10.99 inches.  The most significant 
December rainfall event of 2.6 inches occurred on 12/12/2015.  
    
Attachments: 

• Well Levels Summary as of 1/12/2015                                     
• Annual Production through the month of December 2014 
• Line plot of Santa Rosa well levels 
• Line plots of San Simeon well levels by year 
• Plot showing statistical analysis of San Simeon well levels 
• Line plot of San Simeon well levels for historic minimum, average, and maximum 
• Line plot of San Simeon well levels for past five years 

27



1/12/14 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
           WELL WATER LEVELS FOR 1/12/14

Reference
Distance Point Depth of
Ref. Point Distance Water

Well to Above Sea to Sea
Code Water Level Level Level            Remarks

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELLS

23R 33.28 83.42 50.14
SR4 30.50 82.00 51.50
SR3 19.98 54.30 34.32
SR1 19.14 46.40 27.26
RP#1 20.84 46.25 25.41
RP#2 33.11 Not Read
21R3 7.85 12.88 5.03
WBE 11.89 16.87 4.98
WBW 17.02 Not Read

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SANTA ROSA WELLS SR1 & SR3  = 30.79 FEET
     CCSD SANTA ROSA WELL SR4 = 51.50 FEET

SAN SIMEON CREEK WELLS

16D1 5.92 11.81 5.89
9M1 65.63 Not Read
9P2 9.17 19.11 9.94
9P7 19.59
9L1 10.47 27.33 16.86
SS4 25.92 SS4 to 9P2 Gradient = - N/A
9K2 30.23 Not Read
SS3 14.02 33.25 19.23
SS2 13.02 34.01 20.99
SS1 12.81 34.07 21.26
11B1 105.43 Not Read
11C1 14.30 98.20 83.90

PFNW 93.22 Not Read
10A1 78.18 Not Read
10G2 62.95 Not Read
10G1 59.55 Not Read
10F2 66.92 Not Read
10M2 23.26 55.21 31.95

9J3 43.45 Not Read

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SAN SIMEON WELLS SS1,SS2 & SS3  = 20.49 FEET

1/12/14
                                        Report format revised 7/23/2013

                  Red Font are the CCSD's Production Wells, as measured on

28



4.95 4.69 4.32 4.37 3.77 3.65 3.38 3.27 3.25 2.84 3.06 3.23 3.27 3.34 4.09 4.02 3.67 4.02 

8.62 
6.02 4.98 

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

35.00

40.00

45.00

50.00

55.00

60.00

15
th

A
PR

L

15
th

M
A

Y

15
th

JU
N

E

15
th

JU
LY

15
th

A
U

G
.

15
th

S
EP

T

15
th

O
C

T.

15
th

N
O

V
.

15
th

D
E

C
.

15
th

JA
N

.

15
th

FE
B.

15
th

M
A

R
.

15
th

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 A

B
O

VE
 S

EA
 L

EV
EL

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELL LEVELS
March 15th, 2014 - Current

23R(HS well) SR4 SR3 SR1 Windsor bridge well  Indicates CCSD Production wells

29



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

15 A
P

R
L

15 M
AY

15 JU
N

E

15 JU
LY

15 A
U

G
.

15 S
E

PT

15 O
C

T.

15 N
O

V
.

15 D
EC

.

15 JA
N

.

15 FEB
.

15 M
AR

.

15

El
ev

at
io

n 
ab

ov
e 

Se
a 

Le
ve

l (
Fe

et
)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
1988 - mid-January, 2015

1988  (566 af) 1989  (622 af) 1990  (457 af) 1991  (405 af) 1992  (542 af) 1993  (691 af)
1994  (538 af) 1995  (676 af) 1996  (718 af) 1997  (679 af) 1998  (707 af) 1999  (775 af)
2000  (799 af) 2001  (745 af) 2002 (728 af) 2003 (709 af) 2004 (612 af) 2005 (652 af)
2006 (613 af) 2007 (618 af) 2008 (707.61) 2009 (699.48) 2010 (672.41) 2011 (682.88)
2012 (725 af) 2013 (733 af) 2014

30



‐5.00

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

1988 ‐2014 Statistical San Simeon Well Level Summary by Month
showing Minimums, Maximums, 25 % Percentile, 75% Percentile

Average Level is the line between the Purple (hatched) and Green (solid) bars

25th Percentile 75th Percentile 2014 reads

31



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

M
A

R
C

H
 15

A
P

R
IL 1

A
P

R
IL 15

M
A

Y
 1

M
A

Y
 15

JU
N

E
 1

JU
N

E
 15

JU
LY

 1

JU
LY

 15

A
U

G
 1

A
U

G
 15

S
E

P
T 1

S
E

P
T 15

O
C

T 1

O
C

T 15

N
O

V
 1

N
O

V
 15

D
E

C
 1

D
E

C
 15

D
E

C
 31

JAN
 15

FE
B

 1

FE
B

 14

M
A

R
C

H
 1

M
A

R
C

H
 15

El
ev

at
io

n 
ab

ov
e 

Se
a 

Le
ve

l (
Fe

et
)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
Last 5 years

March, 2009  - Current
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

32



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

15 A
pr

15 M
ay

15 June

15 July

15 A
ug

15 S
ept

15 O
ct

15 N
ov

15 D
ec

15 Jan

15 Feb

15 M
ar

15
El

ev
at

io
n 

ab
ov

e 
Se

a 
Le

ve
l (

Fe
et

)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
2014 levels to date and 

1988 to 2014 Min, Max, & Average
2014 Maximum Levels Minimum Levels Average Levels

33



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING – JANUARY 29, 2015 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

FINANCE MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 

 
ADMINISTRATION 
 
The Finance Department is now operating with a full-time finance manager, two full-time admin clerks 
(utility billing and payroll) and two part-time admin clerks.  Only one person, Cortney Upthegrove, has 
been here more than one year so we are all learning each day.  One of our goals is to cross-train on all 
functions and we have staff meetings so everyone can keep abreast of what everyone else is doing. 
There are also several ex-employees available to come in to help us when needed which has been very 
helpful.   
 
BUDGET 

 
• A Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget was adopted on June 26, 2014.   
• A Budget Amendment funding emergency water supply improvements at Santa Rosa Creek, the 

development of an emergency water supply system at San Simeon Creek, increasing general 
fund expenditure authority to maintain trees on CCSD property and decreasing total 
appropriation authority in the Waste Water Fund was adopted on November 20, 2014. 

• A mid-year budget review will be presented to the Board in February 2015.  Preliminary staff 
analysis of financial data through November 2014 indicates the General Fund will end the year 
with a surplus of $141,632, the Water Fund will end the year with a deficit of $24,393 and the 
Wastewater Fund will end the year with a deficit of $12,616.  Those projections are based on the 
following data. 
 

  Actual    Budget  Projected
JUL - NOV 2014 FY END 6/30/15 FY END 6/30/15

DISTRICT SUMMARY

GF: FIRE DEPARTMENT (352,634)          39                      (19,500)               
GF: FACILITIES AND RESOURCES (129,102)          (14,925)             (20,887)               
GF: PARKS AND RECREATION 2,042                (11)                     2,265                   
GF: ADMINISTRATION (544,228)          -                     179,754              
TOTAL GENERAL FUND (1,023,923)       (14,897)             141,632              

WATER FUND 114,717           (45,897)             (24,393)               

WASTEWATER FUND 115,818           (117,512)           (12,616)               
 

 
Staff will perform significant additional research considering December revenue and expenditure data 
prior to the February meeting to improve the reliability of the projected amounts. 
 

34



WATER AND WASTEWATER REVENUE 
The chart below shows actual water usage and revenue for fiscal years 2013 and 2014.  It also shows 
actual usage and revenue for the current fiscal year (2015) through December 2014 and projected usage 
and revenue through June 2015.    
 
The chart on the next page shows (on line 51) that actual CCFs billed in the first three billing cycles in 
fiscal year 2015 were 51%, 56% and 59% compared to what was billed in fiscal year 2013.  The 
projected billings for the remaining three billing cycles (also shown on line 51) are 54%, 56% and 47%. 
 

1      WATER SALES
2     

3     FY 12/13 JUL/AUG SEP/OCT NOV/DEC JAN/FEB MAR/APR MAY/JUN CASH
4     TOTAL 381,951     313,702    250,683        255,453          277,670          333,616       
5     BASE 102,586     102,672    102,722        102,809          102,906          102,915       616,610      
6     USAGE 278,488     210,933    146,434        151,971          173,955          229,755       1,191,536  
9     ADJ 877             97              1,527            673                  809                  946              4,929          
11    TOTAL CASH 1,813,075  
12   CCF 61,407      51,098     40,051         40,943           44,201           54,173       291,873      
13   USAGE $/CCF 4.54          4.13          3.66             3.71               3.94               4.24            
14   

15   FY 13/14 JUL/AUG SEP/OCT NOV/DEC JAN/FEB MAR/APR MAY/JUN CASH
16   TOTAL 393,622     298,103    242,203        232,597          271,413          231,812       
17   BASE 102,895     102,793    102,784        102,907          102,885          102,755       617,019      100%
18   USAGE 288,512     192,906    137,197        129,137          97,979            99,313         945,044      79%
21   ADJ 2,215          2,404         2,222            553                  (157)                 (17,035)        (9,798)         
22  PEN/SURC 70,706            46,779         117,485      
23  TOTAL CASH 1,669,750  92%
24  CCF 63,113      47,345     38,827         36,576           24,917           25,500       236,278      81%
25  USAGE $/CCF 4.57          4.07          3.53             3.53               3.93               3.89            
26  

27  

28  FY 14/15 JUL/AUG SEP/OCT NOV/DEC JAN/FEB MAR/APR MAY/JUN CASH
29  TOTAL 315,646     386,085    328,775        320,249          360,572          363,710       
30  BASE 102,952     102,867    102,837        102,837          102,837          102,837       617,167      100%
31   USAGE 127,246     103,268    83,048          78,106            97,979            99,313         588,960      49%
32  EWS BASE 62,097       62,094          62,094            62,094            62,094         310,473      
33  EWS USAGE 89,005       60,235          56,651            77,101            78,905         361,897      
34  ADJ (7,277)        (15,945)     (12,369)         (12,369)           (12,369)           (12,369)        (72,698)       
35  PEN/SURC 92,725       44,793       32,930          32,930            32,930            32,930         269,238      
36  TOTAL CASH 2,075,037  114%
37  CCF 31,592      28,764     23,723         22,311           24,917           25,500       156,807      54%
38  PRIOR YR 50% 61% 61% 61% 100% 100%
39  USAGE $/CCF 4.03          3.59          3.50             3.50               3.93               3.89            
40  EWS$/CCF 3.09          2.54             2.54               3.09               3.09            

PROJECTIONS

 

35



42  

43  COMPARISON OF WATER USAGE BILLED

44  JUL/AUG SEP/OCT NOV/DEC JAN/FEB MAR/APR MAY/JUN
45  FY 2013 100% 83% 65% 67% 72% 88%
46      Each billing cycle compared to Jul/Aug billing cycle
47  

48  FY 2014 103% 93% 97% 89% 56% 47%
49      Each billing cycle compared to fiscal year 2013 billing cycle
50  

51   FY 2015 51% 56% 59% 54% 56% 47%
52      Each billing cycle compared to fiscal year 2013 billing cycle
53   

 
The chart below shows actual sewer revenue for fiscal years 2013 and 2014.  It also shows actual 
revenue for the current fiscal year (2015) through December 2014 and projected revenue through June 
2015.    
 
 

SEWER SALES

FY 12/13 JUL/AUG SEP/OCT NOV/DEC JAN/FEB MAR/APR MAY/JUN
SEWER SALES 353,040     333,530    314,016        316,887          322,690          339,547       1,979,710  
BASE 248,975     248,931    248,991        249,061          248,917          248,880       
USAGE 104,065     84,599       65,025          67,826            73,773            90,667         

PERCENT SALES COMPARED TO JUL/AUG 2013:
100% 81% 62% 65% 71% 87%

FY 13/14 JUL/AUG SEP/OCT NOV/DEC JAN/FEB MAR/APR MAY/JUN
TOTAL 356,678     327,765    312,334        309,020          288,655          288,937       1,883,389  
BASE 249,916     249,111    249,098        249,489          249,415          249,153       95%
USAGE 106,762     78,654       63,236          59,531            39,240            39,784         

COMPARISON TO SAME PERIOD FY 12/13
TOTAL % 101% 98% 99% 98% 89% 85%
USAGE % 103% 93% 97% 88% 53% 44%

FY 14/15 JUL/AUG SEP/OCT NOV/DEC JAN/FEB MAR/APR MAY/JUN
TOTAL 298,877     291,469    286,650        286,893          289,224          289,768       1,742,881  
BASE 250,263     250,012    249,984        249,984          249,984          249,984       88%
USAGE 48,614       41,457       36,666          36,909            39,240            39,784         

COMPARISON TO SAME PERIOD FY 12/13
TOTAL % 85% 87% 91% 91% 90% 85%
USAGE % 47% 49% 56% 62% 100% 100%

PROJECTIONS

 
 

36



EXPENDITURES OVER $100,000 DURING DECEMBER 2014 
 
There was one disbursement in excess of $100,000 during December 2014. 

• $3,959,810 to CDM Smith for the Emergency Water Supply Project  
 

EXPENDITURES FOR THE EMERGENCY WATER SUPPLY 
 

• The District has undertaken the development of an emergency water supply in response to a 
declared Stage 3 Drought Emergency.  The Finance Department has accounted for expenditures 
associated with this effort by grouping expenditures into two main categories:  
 

1. EWS: Filtration System, SR1/SR3 at Santa Rosa Creek  
2. EWS: Brackish Water Treatment at San Simeon Creek  

 
• Total invoices paid to-date for the Emergency Water Supply projects associated with Santa Rosa 

Creek equal $354,135.  This figure includes costs associated with the rehabilitation of the 
Filtronics Plant and the SR1 and SR3 wells. 
 

• With respect to the Brackish Water Treatment at San Simeon Creek project, total commitments 
made to-date, in the form of issued purchase orders, equal $9,126,647.  These relate to Task 
Orders in the following way: 

 
   $174,495 Task Order 1: Hydrogeological Modeling 
   $299,601 Task Order 2: Preconstruction Engineering (Phase 1) 
   $920,084 Task Order 3: Preconstruction Services (Phase 2) 
   $499,941 Task Order 4: Engineering; Permitting; Purchase Assistance 
   $584,607 Task Order 5: Permitting & Environmental 
$6,647,919  Design/Build Contract (with CDM Constructors, Inc.) 
$9,126,647 Total 
 
 

o Invoices paid to-date to CDM Smith, the Emergency Water Supply Project’s primary 
design/build contractor, equal $7,080,285.  
 
    $114,212 for a progress billing for Task Order 1 
      $60,282 for a progress billing for Task Order 1 
    $299,165 for a progress billing for Task Order 2 
    $629,682 for a progress billing for Task Order 3 
    $133,543 for a progress billing for Task Order 3 
      $33,781 for a progress billing for Task Order 3 
    $498,495 for a progress billing for Task Order 4 
        $1,447 for a progress billing for Task Order 4 
    $141,764 for a progress billing for Task Order 5 
      $56,711 for a progress billing for Task Order 5 
 $1,150,530 for a progress billing for the Design/Build Contract through Sep 2014 
 $3,959,810 for a progress billing for the Design/Build Contract through Oct 2014 

37



 
Column ID A B C E F G

Column Math A - B = C B - E = F A - E = G

Unencumbered Unpaid
Balance Balance Unpaid

Purchase (or Budget Total Remaining Balance
Total Orders Available Invoices on Remaining

Task Task Issued to write Paid Purchase on
Order Order to Purchase to Order Budgeted

Vendor: CDM Smith Number Budget Date Orders) Date Commitments Amount
Hydrogeological Modeling 1 $174,495 $174,495 $0 $174,495 $0 $0

Preconstruction Engineering 2 $299,601 $299,601 $0 $300,029 ($428) ($428)

Preconstruction Services 3 $920,084 $920,084 $0 $797,005 $123,079 $123,079

Engineering; Permitting; Prepurchase Assistance 4 $499,941 $499,941 $0 $499,941 $0 $0

Permitting & Environmental 5 $584,607 $584,607 $0 $198,475 $386,132 $386,132

Design/Build Contract n/a $6,647,919 $6,647,919 $0 $5,110,340 $1,537,579 $1,537,579

EWS Construction Project Grand Total $9,126,647 $9,126,647 $0 $7,080,285 $2,046,362 $2,046,362

Initial Operations Oversight $100,000 $0 $100,000 $0 $0 $100,000
Construction + Initial O&M Total $9,226,647 $9,126,647 $100,000 $7,080,285 $2,046,362 $2,146,362  
 
 

• With respect to the Brackish Water Treatment at San Simeon Creek project, total expenditures to 
all vendors, meaning checks issued, equal $7,380,443.  
 

• The first loan payment to TPB Investments, Inc. for $326,754 for principal and interest on the 
loan for the Emergency Water System will be paid on February 1, 2015. 
 

 
SAVINGS ACCOUNT BALANCE – aka LAIF BALANCE 
 
The following information does not include other cash accounts such as checking accounts. 
 
The balance in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) as of December 31, 2014 was $4,746,529.   
 
The LAIF Balance is made up as follows (restrictions, if applicable, are noted): 
 
   FUND        AMOUNT 
  General      $     395,523 
  General (Proposition 1A)    $     159,286 
  Water (Conservation Dept.-Lot Merger Program) $       15,417 
  Water (Operations)     $     374,294 

Water (EWS)      $  3,432,145 
  Wastewater (Operations)               $     302,778 
  Total       $  4,746,529 
 

38



 

 
 
With the exception of the restricted funds to offset a potential future Proposition 1A take-away, final 
balance amounts are determined after all other fiscal year activity is recorded, reconciled and audited, 
although the balances are monitored during the fiscal year to ensure that funds set-aside for specific 
programs, such as the Lot Merger Program, are not overspent. The above amounts have been updated 
based on the audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.  The amounts have also been updated for the 
interest revenue actually received through December 31, 2014. 
 
As noted above, the majority of the balances are updated based on final, audited results.  (The District’s 
audit is performed at the end of the calendar year.)   
 
 
 
 
 

1 Pooled Cash & Investments - This account is used to inform the financial statement user that a pooling method is used and that these assets (e.g., cash) are 
not held by any specific fund.  It should be noted that under the pooling approach a fund may overdraw its account in the pool.  These overdrafts should be 
reported as liabilities, with a corresponding receivable (i.e., due to/from other funds), on the balance sheet.        Bean, David R., Stephen J. Gauthier, and 
Paul E. Glick. Governmental Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting. Chicago, IL: Government Finance Officers Association, 1988. Print. 

 
 

39



 
INTERNAL LOANS 
 
The only internal loan is the Army Corp of Engineers matching loan which was made consistent with 
the District’s practice of maintaining pooled cash1 available to cover the cash flow needs of the agency 
and of any individual Fund, to be restored to the General Fund.   
 
 

                                   AMOUNT   
                      LOAN                    OF LOAN    
BORROWING           AMOUNT                 COSTS       OUTSTANDING      PURPOSE 
       FUND         AUTHORIZED           TO DATE_         TO DATE_     OF LOAN       

 
Water    $ 166,000            $ 166,000      $ 157,726              Army Corp of 

     Engineers Matching 
 
EXTERNAL LOANS  
 
As of December 31, 2014, the CCSD external debt is as shown in the chart on the following page, 
including interest rates and prepayment penalty provisions. 

 
                                                 

40



DESCRIPTION State Revolving Fund Loan
Bank Note (Funds 2006 
Refund of 1999 Bonds)

Bank Note (2014 
Installment Sales 

Agreement for EWS)
DEBT HOLDER SWRCB City National Bank Western Alliance Bank

ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL $2,592,324.38 $2,245,000.00 $8,939,000.00
INTEREST RATE 3.00% 4.55% 4.11%

FUND Wastewater Wastewater Emergency Water Supply
DEPARTMENT Wastewater Wastewater Water

FINAL PAYMENT DATE 5/28/2016 9/23/2023 8/1/2034   
PRINCIPAL BALANCE @ 8/11/14 $332,920 $1,303,000 $8,939,000

PROJECTED PRINCIPAL PAYMENT(S) FFY 2014/2015 $164,069 $109,000 $149,181
PROJECTED INTEREST PAYMENT(S) FFY 2014/2015 $9,987 $56,807 $177,573

PROJECTED BALANCE @ 6/30/15** $168,851 $1,194,000 $8,789,819

PROJECTED PRINCIPAL PAYMENT(S) FFY 2015/2016 $168,851 $109,000 $304,246
PROJECTED INTEREST PAYMENT(S) FFY 2015/2016 $5,066 $51,847 $358,137

PROJECTED BALANCE @ 6/30/16** $0 $1,085,000 $8,485,573

PROJECTED PRINCIPAL PAYMENT(S) FFY 2016/2017 $0 $114,000 $313,861
PROJECTED INTEREST PAYMENT(S) FFY 2016/2017 $0 $46,773 $345,565

PROJECTED BALANCE @ 6/30/17** $0 $971,000 $8,171,712

PROJECTED PRINCIPAL PAYMENT(S) FFY 2017/2018 $0 $118,000 $326,893
PROJECTED INTEREST PAYMENT(S) FFY 2016/2017 $0 $41,496 $332,533

PROJECTED BALANCE @ 6/30/18** $0 $853,000 $7,844,819

PROJECTED INTEREST PAYMENTS FFY 14/15-17/18 $15,053 $196,923 $1,213,808

AVERAGE ANNUAL TOTAL (P+I) PAYMENT(S)* $173,987 $161,731 $659,975

PREPAYMENT PENALTY No
 Yes-3% from 10/1/13-

4/1/16, 2% from 10/1/16-
4/1/20, none after 10/1/20 

 Yes - 5% until 8/1/2015; 
prepayment premium 

calculation before 
8/1/2024; 0% on or after 

8/1/2024 

*Average is based on years with a balance outstanding for the entire year.  Payoff years are excluded if final amount is less than normal.

**Presumes all scheduled payments are timely made.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING - OCTOBER 23, 2014
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT
FINANCE MANAGER'S REPORT ATTACHMENT

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM INFRASTRUCTURE-RELATED DEBT

 
 

41



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING JANUARY 29, 2015 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT 
 

Response information is attached and represents activities for the month of December 
2014.  Progress updates and highlights regarding the different programs and services our 
Department provides are identified below: 
 
Prevention and Education (December 2014) 

• 04  residential new and remodel fire plan reviews were completed. 
• 06  residential and commercial technical fire inspections were conducted 
• 15  engine company commercial fire and life safety inspections were conducted. 
• 04  public education events.  
• 07  residential smoke detectors were installed and or the batteries changed. 

 
Meetings and Affiliations (December 2014) 

• SLO County Chiefs Assn. Meeting   Dec. 03 0900-1200, Morro Bay 
• Ethics Course      Dec. 09 0900-1200, Cambria 
• New Chief Pinning Ceremony   Dec. 12 1400-1600, Arroyo Grande 

                                                                                                                                      
Operations 
 
Fire crews responded to a mutual aid request to assist Cal Fire on a vehicle roll over on San 
Simeon Creek Road on January 11th.  The accident was a single vehicle roll over with two 
occupants, an unrestrained driver and a properly seated and belted child.  The driver was 
severely injured after being ejected from the vehicle and the child was uninjured.  This is a 
testament to the effectiveness of seatbelts and children’s car seats. 
 
The Fire Department received a credible Great White Shark sighting on Wednesday 
January 7th at about 4:00 p.m.  The shark was sighted about 300 yards off shore from the 
Bluffs Trail.  The sighting was made by a couple bird watching with binoculars who stated 
that the shark was feeding on a seal. 
 
The 2014 Season of Hope campaign ended successfully this year after collecting a fairly 
large volume of food and toys.  The annual Season of Hope drive is coordinated by the 
KSBY news network and donations go to various food banks and charitable organizations 
around San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara Counties.  The Fire Station is one of many 
collection points around the two Counties.   
 
Prevention  
 
The Cambria Fire Department and Code Enforcement Inspectors from Cal Fire completed a 
comprehensive Fire and Life Safety and construction code compliance inspection on the 
new Emergency Water supply (EWS) facility.  Although technically the EWS is within Cal 
Fire’s jurisdictional boundaries, the inspection and review were conducted as a cooperative 
effort between the two agencies.  Future training and efforts to familiarize all local 
emergency responders with the facility and operations is being planned. 
 
A meeting was held on January 19th with stakeholders of the Cambria Monterey Pine forest 
to discuss strategy for upcoming grant proposals due at the end of the month.  The grants 
are to provide programs to improve forest health in the wake of the extreme pine mortality 
caused by the extended drought conditions over the last 4 years.  The grants are funded by 
SRA fees and managed through the Fire Safe Council.  Roughly $500,000 may be allocated 
to improve Cambria’s forest health.  Members of the Cambria Forest Committee, FFRP, 

42



 2

Greenspace and CCSD are responsible for crafting the grant proposal which has 
successfully advanced to the second round for consideration.  If funded, the monies 
received would provide crews to work in Cambria to improve forest health. 
 

43



CMB Fire Monthly Stats:  Incidents

Categories 14-Jan 14-Feb 14-Mar 14-Apr 14-May 14-Jun 14-Jul 14-Aug 14-Sep 14-Oct 14-Nov Dec-14  Totals

Fire 2 1 2 1 2 0 1 2 2 3 1 1 18

Hazardous Mat. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Medical* 55 40 52 32 36 38 43 41 29 35 50 56 507

Vehicle TC 2 0 1 1 3 2 3 2 1 2 3 7 27

Hazardous Situations 1 10 5 5 1 3 6 3 3 3 2 17 59

Public Service Assist 18 14 14 7 10 17 16 15 12 13 5 16 157

False Alarms 11 12 4 18 10 11 11 13 7 7 5 16 125

Agency Assist 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Mutual Aid 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Auto Aid 0 3 3 2 3 2 0 0 2 3 0 0 18

Rescue 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Fire Investigations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1

Monthly Response Totals 90 80 81 66 65 73 80 76 56 66 69 113 915

Cumulative Totals 90 170 251 317 382 455 535 611 667 733 802 915 915

44



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING – January 29, 2015 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT FACILITIES AND RESOURCES 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

o Fiscalini Ranch: 
§ Staff reopened forest trails after 6 trees fell across them.      
§ Dangerous Trees: 

• Many have been able to see the effect the prolonged drought has 
had on the towns Monterrey pine forest. The Ranch is no 
exception. Many trees that were healthy 3 years ago are now dead 
or dying.  

• Those trees that are next to homes bordering the ranch pose a 
threat to the homeowners. During last month staff has received 
multiple calls from neighbors along Warren Rd. concerned about 
dead trees.  

• In the past month 10 trees along Warren Rd that posed a threat 
were cut down by staff. 3 more trees are being hired out to be 
either topped or cut down completely.  

o CCSD Lots:  
§ Staff is collecting bids to top two dead and dangerous trees on CCSD lots 

that are next to homes. One tree is located on the 900 block of Hartford 
St. and the other on the 5300 block of Pembrook.  

§ Monitoring Report: 
• In December the District received the annual monitoring report from 

the Land Conservancy of San Luis Obispo.  
• All District lots that have been acquired through the Land 

Conservancy of San Luis Obispo have a conservation easement on 
them. Every year the Land Conservancy inspects every property to 
assure that the land is being used as it was intended.  

• Included in this report is a cop of that report.       
o Vet’s Hall: 

§ 42 events were held at Veterans Memorial Building since last Board 
Meeting. Among those events were: Weekly Farmers Market and Art and 
Wine Festival  

§ Refinishing of Wood Floors: 
• Refinishing of wood floors in the Main Hall and Dining Room began 

on December 15th.  
• The refinishing took a total of 7 days. 3 days were used to prep and 

apply 2 coats of finish and 4 days were needed for the finish to 
harden on the floor. 

• The work was scheduled during a week were few events were 
scheduled. 2 portable restrooms were ordered to accommodate 
Farmers Market.      
 

 
Submitted by: 
Carlos Mendoza 
Facilities and Resources Supervisor/ 
Fiscalini Ranch Preserve Manager 

45



46



47



48



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING JANUARY, 2015 

ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

WASTEWATER SUPERVISOR REPORT 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations: 

• Orlando Archuleta assumed Wastewater Supervisor duties on December 29th. 
• Clarifier #1 drive chain and gear repaired by FRM. 
• PM performed on WWTP generator, coolant, oil and fuel. 
• Repairs performed on WWTP vehicles: F350 and tool truck  
• All operators responded to high flows at the WWTP and lift station due to storm on 12/12/14. 
• Preparing monthly report for December, 2014 to the “State Water Resources Control Board”. 
• Preparing 2014 annual report to the “State Water Resources Control Board” to be submitted at 

end of January, 2015.   
• Submitted signed “Chief Operator Acknowledgement Form” to the “State Water Resources 

Control Board” for CCSD wastewater treatment facility. 

Collestion Systems & Lift Stations: 

• Fluid Resource Management is doing repairs on Lift Station 9, pump #2, check valve and piping. 
• Responded to alarms on LS-B, A-1, A, LS-4, LS-9 
• Checked that all alarms are functioning at all lift stations. 

Laboratory:  

• Storm samples gathered on 12/15/15 for Abalone Coast Analytical. 
• Samples gathered for FGL. 
• Daily Testing for compliance reporting to local and state agencies. 

 
 
 
   

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



  CONSENT ITEM 7B 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2014, 12:30 PM 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION OR ACTION 
1A. CALL TO ORDER President Bahringer called the regular meeting 

to order at 12:31 PM.  
1B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE President Bahringer led the pledge of allegiance. 
1C. ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM President Bahringer  Present 

Vice President Robinette Present 
Director Thompson  Present 
Director Clift   Present 
Director Rice                Present 
 
Staff Present: General Manager Jerry Gruber,  
Deputy District Counsel David Hirsch, District 
Engineer Bob Gresens, Administrative Services 
Officer/District Clerk Monique Madrid,  and 
Finance Manager Patrick O’Reilly. 

1D. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
1.E.  Accept Certification by San Luis Obispo 
County Clerk-Recorder of November 4, 2014 
Election Results 
 
1F  Election of Board of Directors’ Officers 
 

1D.   District Counsel David Hirsch indicated that 
there was nothing  to report from closed 
session.  
 
1E.  General Manager introduced the item and 
turned it over to the Clerk.  The Clerk presented 
the report and it was accepted by the Board. 
 
1F.  General Manager introduced the item.  
President Bahringer asked for nominations for 
President.   
 
Director Thompson nominated Vice-President 
Robinette to serve as President for the term of 
the year 2015.  No other nominations were 
made. 
 
Roll Call vote: 
Thompson-yes 
Clift-yes 
Rice -yes 
Robinette-yes 
Bahringer-yes 
 
Director Bahringer nominated Director Clift for 
Vice-President.  No other nominations were 
made for Vice-President. 
 
Roll Call vote:  

58



CCSD Minutes 
Page 2 
December 18, 2014 

Director Bahringer-yes 
Director Thompson-yes 
Director Clift-yes 
Director Rice-yes 
President Robinette-yes 
 
Public Comment:  None 

2. SPECIAL REPORTS  
A. Sheriff’s Department Report 

 
2A.  No representative was present.   
 
Public Comment: None 

3. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS 
 

President Robinette and Director Bahringer  
presented a Proclamation recognizing 20 years 
of service by North Coast Ocean Rescue Team 
(NCOR) to the Cambria Community. 
 
Public Comment:  NONE 

4. AGENDA REVIEW:  Additions/Deletions   
and Pulled Consent Items 

 

Director Rice asked to pull items 7C & D 
Director Rice commented on item 7E 
Director Thompson commented on item 7D 
 
Public Comment:  None 

5.            PUBLIC COMMENT Public Comment: 
Ron Crummit  

6.    MANAGER’S AND BOARD REPORTS  
A. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the 

report, presented the other managers reports 
and took questions.   
 
Public Comment:  NONE 

B. AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Director Clift reported on the budget and ad hoc 
water committee meetings.   
 
Director Rice reported on the Cambria Forest 
Committee meeting and the tour of the EWS 
with the Coastal Commissioner Erik Howell last 
week.   
 
 Public Comment:  None 

7. CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Consideration to Approve the Expenditure 

Report for the Month of November 2014 
B. Consideration to Approve the Minutes 

from the November 20, 2014 Board of 
Directors Meeting  

C. Consideration to Approve Adoption of 
Resolution 47-2014 Setting the Salary 
Range for Administrative Services 

Pulled Items:  7C, 7D, and 7E.   
 
Director Rice commented on item 7B the 
minutes: she was not at closed session.   This 
change will be made on the minutes.   
 
Director Bahringer moved to approve the 
consent agenda for items 7A and 7B.   

59



CCSD Minutes 
Page 3 
December 18, 2014 

Officer/District Clerk of $7,977.00-
$9,696.00 

D. Consideration to Adopt 2015 CCSD 
Regular Board Meeting Schedule 

E. Consideration and Discussion to Adopt 
Resolution 46-2014 to Authorize the 
General Manager to Enter into an 
Agreement with the State of California to 
receive grant funds in the amount of 
$353,000.00 

 
Director Clift seconded the motion. 
 
Motion passed unanimously Ayes-5, No’s-0 
Absent-0.   
 
Public Comment:  None 
 
Item 7C:   
 
Director Bahringer moved to accept item 7C as 
written.   
 
Director Clift seconded the motion.   
 
Motion passed unanimously: Ayes-5, No’s-0, 
Absent-0.   
 
Item 7D:   
 
Director Bahringer moved to approve this 
schedule and evening meeting schedule will be 
brought back to the board for consideration.   
 
Director Clift seconded the motion. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.  Ayes-5, No’s-0, 
Absent-0.   
 
Item 7E:    
 
Director Bahringer moved to approve the item.   
 
Director Thompson seconded the motion. 
 
The motion passed unanimously.   
Ayes-5, Nos-0, Absent-0.  
 
Public Comment:  None 

8. HEARINGS AND APPEALS  
A. Hold a Public Hearing to Adopt Resolution 

48-2014 Revising Enhanced Conservation 
Measures, Restriction on the Use of 
Potable Water and Maximum Water Use 
Allotments 

8A.  General Manager introduced the item. 
 
President Robinette opened the public hearing. 
 
Public Comment:   
Paul Carlson 
Crosby Schwartz   
 

60



CCSD Minutes 
Page 4 
December 18, 2014 

President Robinette closed the public hearing. 
 
Director Clift moved to continue the public 
hearing to next month’s meeting.  
 
Director Bahringer seconded the motion.  
 
Motion passed unanimously.  Ayes-5, Nos-0, 
Absent-0 

9. REGULAR BUSINESS  
A. Discussion Regarding CCSD Board of 

Directors Bylaws 
B. Presentation on Environmental 

Compliance Action (ECA) 
 

9A.  General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced 
the item  
 
President Robinette suggested that Directors 
with suggested changes make them in redline 
version and send to the Clerk to combine and 
place on January agenda for board 
consideration. 
 
Public Comment:  None 
 
9B.  General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced 
the item and turned it over to District Engineer 
Bob Gresens.  Bob introduced Brandon Stipe of 
Carollo Engineering.  Mr. Stipe presented a 
report regarding the Environmental Compliance 
Action.   
 
Public Comment:  None 

10.         PUBLIC COMMENT Public Comment:  
John Terwilliger 
Jim Aaron  

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) 
 

Public Comment: 
Jerry McKinnon 

12. ADJOURN President Robinette adjourned the meeting at 
4:15 p.m. 

 

61



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.C.  
 
FROM: Carlos Mendoza, Fiscalini Ranch Preserve Manager   
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 29, 2015 Subject: Consideration to Authorize Execution of  
       Revised Memorandum of Understanding  
       between the Cambria Community Services  
       District and the Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch  
       Preserve Regarding Donations and   
       Merchandise Sales  on the Fiscalini Ranch 
       Preserve  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize the execution of the attached revised Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
between the Cambria Community Services District and the Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch 
Preserve (FFRP) regarding donations and merchandise sales on the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
All funds raised will be used for the upkeep and maintenance of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
At the April 25, 2013 Board Meeting, the CCSD Board of Directors approved an MOU between 
the CCSD and the Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch, for a one year term. That term has since 
expired. The Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch is a nonprofit organization whose mission is to 
protect and maintain the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve. In order to raise funds to further its 
purposes FFRP desires to have the MOU extended for another year, in order to continue to 
conduct a program to seek donations and conduct fundraising activities on the Ranch. 
 
In order for the MOU to be in compliance with the Ranch Management Plan and the 
Conservation Easement it has also been revised to indicate that, if merchandise is to be sold, 
the table will be located off Ranch property. The revised MOU was presented to the FFRP 
Board of Directors at their November meeting. The FFRP Board accepted the changes.  
 
The MOU sets forth the definition of fundraising activities and type of merchandise that can be 
sold or distributed. It also provides  that all FFRP volunteers that come into contact with the 
public wear clothing that distinguishes them as volunteers of FFRP, and be educated and 
trained. The MOU allows the CCSD to review FFRP records relating to their performance of 
the MOU, along with an annual audit of all funds raised pursuant to the MOU. 
 
A redlined version of the MOU is attached for the Board’s reference showing the changes from 
the original MOU. 
 
Attachments: Revised MOU between the CCSD and FFRP Regarding Donations and 

Merchandise Sales on the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve  
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:   ___ ROBINETTE ___ CLIFT ___ BAHRINGER ___ THOMPSON ___ RICE ___ 

62



 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CAMBRIA  
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AND THE FRIENDS OF THE FISCALINI  

RANCH PRESERVE REGARDING DONATIONS AND MERCHANDISE SALES ON 
THE FISCALINI RANCH PRESERVE  

 
This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is made and entered into this      day of 
January 2015, by and between the Cambria Community Services District (“CCSD”) and 
the Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve (“FFRP”), 
 

RECITALS  

WHEREAS, the Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve (“FFRP”)  is a 501(c)3 nonprofit 
organization whose mission is to protect and maintain the Fiscalini Ranch (“Ranch”) and 
FFRP is committed to the on-going restoration and protection of the habitat, natural and 
cultural features of the Ranch while maintaining its historic public access; and 

WHEREAS, in order to raise funds to further its purposes, FFRP desires to conduct a 
program to seek donations and conduct fundraising activities on the Ranch and desires 
to enter into this MOU with the Cambria Community Services District to set forth the 
manner in which such fundraising activities may take place. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein made, the parties 
understand and agree as follows: 

SECTION  1.   DEFINITIONS 
 
1. Donation – is a type of fundraising income to FFRP, the use of which may or may not 
be subject to restrictions by the donor. Donations are typically given to the non-profit 
organization by willing donors and may either be solicited or unsolicited, restricted or 
general. 
 
2. Fundraising – means the organized activity or an instance of soliciting money, 
pledges or gifts. Fundraising includes, but is not limited to, soliciting donations grants, 
planned giving, and other similar activities. Fundraising does not include sales. 
 
3. Interpretative material – is a mission-based communication creating emotional and 
intellectual connections between the audience and the resource or organization. 
 
4. Sales – for purposes of this MOU means the commercial activity of offering a product 
or service for a specific price.  
 
SECTION  2.  Fundraising Activities on the Fiscalini Ranch 
 
1. FFRP agrees to maintain a close relationship and consult regularly with the CCSD on 
all matters pertaining to activities authorized under this MOU. 

63



 
2. FFRP agrees to meet at least annually to coordinate with CCSD on activities related 
to the implementation of this MOU and to review compliance with terms of this MOU. 
 
3. FFRP will seek necessary approvals of CCSD for any planned activities. FFRP may 
plan and carry out fundraising activities on the Ranch with the agreement of either the 
Ranch Manager, CCSD General Manager or CCSD Board of Directors. 
 
4. FFRP may engage in fundraising / taking donations and providing organizational and 
preserve information and FFRP merchandise and interpretive materials sales activities 
at the north and/or south entrances to the Bluff Trail.  

• This would include a donations tube at each end of the Bluff Trail on the Ranch 
and permission to have an information table on selected weekends, possibly 
extending to every weekend if the number of volunteers allows. 

• Volunteers would sit at an information table, answer questions, hand out 
brochures take donations and sell FFRP merchandise, such as Ranch t-shirts 
and baseball caps. If merchandise is to be sold the table will be located off the 
Ranch property. 

• Volunteers will not approach visitors but will wait to be approached. 
• Volunteers who come in direct contact with the public shall wear a name badge 

by which they may be known and distinguished as volunteers of FFRP, 
representing the organization. 

• FFRP will educate, train, and regularly review the conduct of its volunteers 
having contact with the public. 

 
5. Inappropriate merchandise will not be sold or distributed on site. Inappropriate 
merchandise includes, but is not limited to, those items that meet the following criteria: 
 

• Items that imply or perpetuate inaccurate information or stereotypes. 
• Items that violate state, federal or international laws in their production or sales. 
• Items that are in conflict with cultural or natural resource preservation or 

conservation principles. 
• Items that are in conflict with resource protection on the Ranch. 

 
6. CCSD agrees to provide the venue and support for special events. 
 
7. A CCSD representative will have the right to review FFRP records pertaining to the 
performance of this MOU.     
 
8. FFRP shall have an audit performed annually related to the funds raised pursuant to 
this MOU. 
 
9.  All funds raised shall be used for the upkeep and maintenance of the Ranch. 
 
10. The term of this Memorandum of Understanding shall be for one year. 
 

64



Executed at Cambria, California, on the date and year first appearing above.  

 

Cambria Community Services District Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch 
Preserve 

 

 

By:__________________________  By:____________________________ 

Gail Robinette, President  

       Its: ___________________________     
                   
        

Attest:             
  

____________________________   

Monique Madrid, District Clerk      

 

 

Approved As To Form:     

 

 

_____________________________   

Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 

65



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 8.A.  
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager   
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 29, 2015 Subject: CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING  
        REGARDING ADOPTION OF  
        RESOLUTION 01-2015 REVISING 
        ENHANCED WATER 
        CONSERVATION MEASURES,  
        RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF  
        POTABLE WATER AND MAXIMUM  
        WATER USE ALLOTMENTS 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors continue its consideration of adoption of 
Resolution 01-2015 revising the enhanced water conservation measures, restrictions on the 
use of potable water and maximum water use allotments. 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 
 
1.  Open the Continued Public Hearing; 
2.  Receive public testimony; 
3.  Close the Public Hearing; 
4.  Consider Resolution 01-2015 Revising Enhanced Water     

 Conservation Measures, Restrictions on the Use of Potable Water and Maximum Water  
     Use Allotments 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The exact impact of implementing any additional changes to the enhanced water conservation 
measures, restrictions on use of potable water and maximum water use allotments cannot be 
determined at this time. Depending on the changes, water revenues could decrease as a result 
of less water being used due to further revisions to the enhanced water conservation 
measures, however, other modifications may result in more water being used by those uses 
than under the previously approved allotments.   Additional staff time may also be required to 
administer any changes to the program.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
At the December 18, 2014 meeting the Board of Directors held a public hearing to consider  
a resolution to modify the restriction on outdoor watering of landscaping and gardens with 
potable water.  The resolution also included the deletion of the provision that public restrooms 
be closed and replaced with porta-potties, since the General Manager had made a 
determination to reopen the restrooms pursuant to his authority under Resolution 19-2014.  
After discussing the item the Board continued the public hearing to its January, 2015 meeting.  
Accordingly, this matter is on today’s agenda for further consideration.   
 
 
As the Board of Directors is aware, beginning on January 30, 2014 the Board of Directors has 
adopted several resolutions relating to the Stage 3 Water Shortage Condition and has 

66



 
 

2

implemented enhanced water conservation measures, restrictions on the use of potable water 
and maximum water use allotments for its customers in the District.  Maximum water use 
allotments have been established for public, commercial, and residential customers.  Use of 
potable water in excess of the monthly water use allotments is prohibited and subject to 
surcharge/penalty levied on all water that is used in excess of the maximum water use 
allotment.  
 
As the Board is also aware, the restrictions include a prohibition on outdoor watering of 
landscaping and gardens with potable water.  That restriction expressly says that the 
prohibition on outdoor watering of landscaping and gardens applies regardless of whether or 
not a particular customer uses less than their monthly use allotment.   Staff is aware that many 
in the community believe that the restrictions on use should be modified to allow customers to 
use their water allotment in whatever manner they choose.  Previously, some Board Members 
have also indicated that they are in favor of such an approach.  If the restriction on outdoor 
watering of landscaping and gardens with potable water were changed in that manner, potable 
water could be used on landscaping and gardens so long as the amount of water used is kept 
within the established maximum water use allotment.   
 
As staff has previously advised, since 2002, the adoption of water use restrictions has been 
based upon the CCSD’s existing declared Water Code Section 350 water shortage 
emergency.  In this respect, Water Code Section 353 authorizes the Board to adopt 
regulations and restrictions on the delivery of water which will conserve the water supply for 
the greatest public benefit.  Also, Water Code Sections 375, et seq., provides the authority for 
the District to adopt and enforce water conservation measures to reduce the quantity of water 
being used in order to conserve water supplies, and a public hearing is required to be held 
prior to adopting a resolution under Section 375. If Resolution 01-2015 is adopted, it will be 
effective immediately upon adoption, subject to the publication requirements set forth in Water 
Code Section 376 which are consistent with the notice requirements of CCSD Municipal Code 
Section 4.12.060.  After publication, violations of the requirements of the water conservation 
program are a misdemeanor and punishable pursuant to Water Code Section 377.   
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ ROBINETTE ___ CLIFT ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ RICE 
 
 
 
 

67



  
RESOLUTION NO. 01 2015 

January 29, 2015 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

REVISING ENHANCED WATER CONSERVATION MEASURES, 
RESTRICTIONS ON THE USE OF POTABLE WATER AND  

MAXIMUM WATER USE ALLOTMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District 
(“CCSD”) has declared a Water Code Section 350 Water Shortage Emergency; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 353, the Board of Directors may 
adopt such regulations and restrictions on the delivery of water which will 
conserve the water supply for the greatest public benefit; and 
 
WHEREAS,  based upon determinations related to the condition of the CCSD’s 
water supplies, on September 20, 2013 the Board of Directors, after holding a 
duly noticed public hearing, adopted Resolution 37-2013 approving enhanced 
water conservation measures and restrictions on the use of potable water; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 17, 2014, the Governor of the State of California 
declared a state of emergency (the “Proclamation”) due to record dry conditions 
and concerns over the State’s dwindling water supplies. The Proclamation states 
that “[l]ocal urban water suppliers and municipalities are called upon to 
implement their local water shortage contingency plans immediately in order to 
avoid or forestall outright restrictions that could become necessary later in the 
drought season”; 
 
WHEREAS, the domestic water supply for the CCSD may be inadequate based 
upon the continued lack of precipitation and the current water levels in the 
aquifers that provide the domestic water supply for the CCSD, and specifically 
that water levels in the San Simeon and Santa Rosa creek aquifers are such that 
staff has determined that the available water supply may be insufficient to meet 
demand; and 
 
WHEREAS, after holding a duly noticed public hearing on January 30, 2014 the 
Board of Directors declared a Stage 3 Water Shortage Condition and determined 
that it is necessary and desirable to adopt further revised enhanced water 
conservation measures and restrictions on the use of potable water, which 
included maximum water use allotments, and has subsequently adopted 
additional resolutions modifying the enhanced water conservation measures, 
restrictions on the use of potable water, and maximum water use allotments; and 
 
WHEREAS, in addition to Water Code Section 353, Water Code Section 375 
provides that a public entity which supplies water may, after holding a public 
hearing, adopt and enforce water conservation programs to reduce the quantity 
of water used by persons within the entity’s service area or jurisdiction for the 
purpose of conserving the entity’s water supplies; and 
 68



 RESOLUTION 01 2015 
January 29 2015 

 
WHEREAS, after holding a duly noticed public hearing on December 18, 2014, 
and January 29, 2015 the Board of Directors determined that additional revisions 
to the enhanced water conservation measures, restrictions on the use of potable 
water, and maximum water use allotments were appropriate. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Cambria Community Services District as follows: 
 
 

1 Based upon the existing water conditions, as described above, and in 
numerous staff reports and presentations to the Board of Directors, the 
Board of Directors hereby finds that the demands and requirements of 
water consumers cannot be satisfied without depleting the water 
supply of the CCSD to the extent that there would be insufficient water 
for human consumption, sanitation and fire protection and that, based 
on this condition and on concerns regarding the anticipated prolonged 
drought conditions, the Board of Directors declares that the Stage 3 
Water Shortage Emergency Condition continues to exist  and hereby 
implements revisions to the Stage 3 Water Conservation Program with 
enhanced water conservation measures, as further set forth herein and 
in Exhibit “A”,  all of which the Board of Directors finds are necessary 
and appropriate to protect the health, safety and welfare of the public. 

 
 

2 Resolution 19-2014 is hereby repealed and replaced by this Resolution 
with the revised Enhanced Water Conservation Measures, Restrictions 
on the Use of Potable Water, and Maximum Water Use Allotments set 
forth in Exhibit “A,” which exhibit is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. The revised Enhanced Water Conservation Measures, 
Restrictions on the Use of Potable Water, and Maximum Water Use 
Allotments shall be effective immediately and apply within the 
jurisdictional boundaries of the Cambria Community Services District 
until rescinded or modified by the Board of Directors. All other CCSD 
water conservation rules, regulations, restrictions, definitions, 
enforcement procedures, violation provisions and appeal procedures 
which are in force shall remain in force, except where they may conflict 
with the Enhanced Water Conservation Measures and Restrictions set 
forth in this Resolution.  

 
3 The District Clerk shall publish this Resolution in full within 10 days of 

its adoption in accordance with the provisions of Water Code Section 
376(a).  After such publication, and in accordance with the provisions 
of Water Code Section 377,  violation of the Enhanced Water 
Conservation Measures and Restrictions on the Use of Potable Water 
set forth in Exhibit “A” is a misdemeanor and punishable as set forth in 
Water Code Section 377. 

 
4 Within fourteen (14) days from the date of this Resolution, the General 

Manager is hereby directed to provide notice to all effected water 
customers of the revised Maximum Water Use Allotments as set forth 69



 RESOLUTION 01 2015 
January 29 2015 

 
herein as well as the surcharges/ penalties and other consequences 
for a violation thereof.  

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 29th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Gail Robinette, President 

Board of Directors 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       

      Timothy J. Carmel 
      District Counsel 
ATTEST:      
 
_________________________ 
Monique Madrid 
District Clerk 
 
  

70



 RESOLUTION 01 2015 
January 29 2015 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” TO RESOLUTION 01 2015 
ENHANCED WATER CONSERVATION MEASURES, 

RESTRICTIONS ON THE USE OF POTABLE WATER, AND  
MAXIMUM WATER USE ALLOTMENTS   

 
 

A.   RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF POTABLE WATER: 
 
Effective immediately, outdoor use of potable water is restricted as follows:   

 
1. Guests in hotels, motels, and other commercial lodging establishments shall 

be provided the option of not laundering towels and linens daily.  The CCSD 
will provide lodging establishments notices to advise guests of this option free 
of charge. 

 
2. Washing vehicles, boats, and trailers with potable water is prohibited.  

 
3. Washing down sidewalks, driveways, streets, walkways, parking lots, 

windows, buildings, porches, or patios and all other hard-surfaced areas by 
direct hosing or pressure washers with potable water is prohibited.  

 
4. Emptying and refilling swimming pools and commercial spas is prohibited, 

except to prevent structural damage and/or to provide for the public health 
and safety. 

 
5. The use of potable water for fire drills is prohibited. 
 
 
B. MAXIMUM WATER USE ALLOTMENT: 
 
The use of potable water in excess of the monthly water use allotment set forth 
below is prohibited. 
 
1. Public Uses. The CCSD will meet with school districts, public park agencies, 

and all other public agencies to establish appropriate agreements to reduce 
water consumption. The objective of such agreements shall be to eliminate 
irrigation of decorative landscape and reduce irrigation of turf and play areas 
to the minimum levels necessary to protect the health and safety of school 
children and park visitors. A five hundred (500) percent surcharge/penalty 
shall apply to all public water use in excess of three units per EDU per month.  

2.  Commercial Uses. The maximum water use allotment for all commercial uses 
shall be 80% of the actual average monthly water usage measured during the 
same monthly billing periods for the previous three (3) years that were used 
preceding implementation of this Stage 3 Water Shortage Emergency 
Condition. In the event a commercial use has not previously had an EDU 
allocation determined, the general manager shall determine and assign the 71



 RESOLUTION 01 2015 
January 29 2015 

 
EDU allocation according to the criteria provided in Title 8 of the CCSD 
Municipal Code, as subsequently amended or replaced.  

 
3. Residential Uses. A maximum monthly use limit of two units per permanent 

resident is established for separately metered individual residential dwellings 
and for each separate residence within residential uses with two or more 
residential dwellings on the same meter (e.g., apartments and mobile homes). 
Each residential customer account is allotted two units per month. Customers 
may request an increase in the allotment of units by completing a permanent 
resident certification form provided by the district. The breakdown by 
household size is as follows:  

 
Household Size Units/Month 
1 permanent resident  2 Units  
Each additional permanent resident 2 Units each  
  
 

4. Adjustment of Maximum Water Use Allotment. Each customer shall have the 
right to request an adjustment of the number of permanent residents in his or 
her household used to compute the maximum water use allotment by 
completing the permanent resident certification. The permanent resident 
certification is a form provided by the CCSD that must be completed by the 
customer and filed at the CCSD office in order to receive an increased water 
allotment. It is the consumer's responsibility to complete and file an amended 
permanent resident certification with the CCSD whenever there is a change in 
the number of "permanent residents" in the customer's household. Permanent 
resident certification forms shall be signed under penalty of perjury.  

C. WATER RATE SCHEDULE: 
 
The amount of water provided by the CCSD for the minimum bi-monthly 
residential service charge shall be reduced from six units to four units. 
Therefore, the first tier of the CCSD’s graduated water rate schedule, as adopted 
pursuant to Title 3 of the CCSD’s Municipal Code, applies to usage of between 
zero and four units. The second tier of the graduated water rate schedule applies 
to usage of between five and fifteen (15) units.  
 
 
D. MONITORING:  
 
Meters will be read monthly but bills will be prepared bi-monthly for the duration 
of this Stage 3 Water Shortage Emergency Condition. Customers with meter 

72



 RESOLUTION 01 2015 
January 29 2015 

 
readings above the maximum use limits set forth herein shall be notified of a 
violation. Thirty (30) days after a water bill is mailed, the bill will become 
delinquent if the bill or any portion thereof which is not in dispute remains unpaid. 
A delinquent bill shall be increased by penalty of ten (10) percent of the amount 
of delinquency. If not paid within ten (10) days after receipt of notice of 
delinquency, service may be disconnected.  
 
E. SURCHARGES/PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF MAXIMUM WATER USE 
ALLOTMENT: 
 
Starting June 1, 2014, a surcharge/penalty will be levied on all water use in 
excess of the maximum water use allotment set forth as follows:  

1. A one hundred percent (100%) surcharge/penalty shall be levied for all 
water use in excess of the maximum water use allotment for between five 
(5) – eight (8) units for bi-monthly service; and  

2. A five hundred percent (500%) surcharge/penalty shall be levied for water 
use in excess of the maximum water use allotment for all usage of more 
than eight (8) units for bi-monthly service. 
 

A delinquent bill shall be increased by penalty of ten (10) percent of the amount 
of delinquency. If the bill is not paid within ten (10) days after receipt of notice of 
delinquency, service may be disconnected.  
 
F.  CITATIONS FOR VIOLATIONS: 
 
In addition to any other penalty permitted by law, the following fines shall apply to 
citations for violations of the water use restrictions contained herein: (reference 
CCSD Municipal Code Section 4.12C Section F(2)) 
 
First Violation: The District shall issue a written citation and impose a fine of 

fifty dollars ($50.00.)  Written notice shall be given to the 
owner by certified mail.  The fine will be billed to the 
customer on the regular bi-monthly water bill.   

 
Second Violation: A fine of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00.) Written notice 

shall be given to the owner by certified mail.  The fine will be 
billed to the customer on the regular bi-monthly water bill. 

 
Third Violation: A fine of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00.) Written notice 

shall be given to the owner by certified mail.  The fine will be 
billed to the customer on the regular bi-monthly water bill. 

 
 
 
 
 

73



 RESOLUTION 01 2015 
January 29 2015 

 
Subsequent      
Violations: A fine of one thousand dollars ($1000.00.)  Written notice 

shall be given to the owner by certified mail.  The fine will be 
billed to the customer on the regular bi-monthly water bill. 

 
 
 
Failure to pay  
fines:  The District may discontinue water service to any customer 

who fails to pay fines billed on the regular bi-monthly bill.  
Service will be restored upon full payment of all outstanding 
balances and reconnection charges.  The charge for 
reconnection and restoration of normal service shall be 
twenty-five dollars ($25.00.)    

 
Discontinuance of  
Service: Repeated violations (i.e. more than two violations) of the 

measures adopted by the Board of Directors during the 
water shortage emergency condition shall be subject to 
discontinuation of service.  The District will send a 
“Discontinuance Notice” for repeated violation of the 
measures.  The water customer shall have ten (10) days to 
enter into a mandatory “Water Use and Retrofit Agreement” 
with the District.  The “Water Use and Retrofit Agreement” 
shall specify mandatory water use restrictions and retrofits 
that must be implemented by the customer within thirty (30) 
days.  Failure to enter into this agreement within ten (10) 
days after receipt of the “Discontinuance Notice” shall result 
in discontinuance of water service.   

  
 The general manager or his/her designee may only restore 

service under a Water Use and Retrofit Agreement” between 
the customer and the District.  Failure to comply with the 
“Water Use and Retrofit Agreement” within thirty (30) days 
from the date water service is restored shall result in 
discontinuance of water service.   

 
G.  EXCEPTIONS: 

 
1.  The general manager may, in his or her discretion, grant exceptions to the 

terms of this chapter not already provided for, if he or she finds and 
determines that:  

 
a. Restrictions herein would cause an undue hardship or emergency  

condition; or 
 

b. That the granting of the exception will not adversely affect the water supply 
or service to other existing water consumers. 

 74



 RESOLUTION 01 2015 
January 29 2015 

 
Such exceptions may be granted only upon application in writing. Applications for 
exceptions from maximum commercial use allotments must be accompanied by 
a water conservation plan which identifies specific conservation measures to be 
implemented according to a detailed implementation schedule. Upon granting 
any such exception, the general manager may impose any conditions he or she 
determines to be just and proper. The terms of any exception shall be set forth in 
writing, the original to be kept on file with the district, and a copy to be furnished 
to the applicant. All exceptions granted shall be reported to the Board of 
Directors at a regularly scheduled meeting.  

2. Specific Exceptions. 
 

a. The intent of exceptions for laundromats and restaurants with public 
restrooms shall be to reduce water consumption and provide for 
surcharges/penalties at Stage 2 levels.  

 
b. Medical exceptions shall be allowed based on an additional two units of 

water a month. The general manager shall issue exceptions consistent with 
current district policy.  

 
c. Exceptions for public governmental agencies shall be consistent with water 

conservation policies of the district. 
 
3. An applicant for an exception under this section may appeal the general 

manager's decision to the Board of Directors. A request for appeal must be 
submitted to the district in writing not more than ten (10) days after the general 
manager's decision. The board of directors shall consider the appeal within 
thirty (30) days of the request for appeal. 

 
 
 
 

75



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 9.A. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Patrick O’Reilly, Finance Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 29, 2015  Subject:  Consideration of 2013/2014 
                                                                    Fiscal Year Financial Audit  
         Presentation by Bob Crosby 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
Receive Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) by Crosby 
Company, Certified Public Accountant. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
While the final billing has not been received, we have been advised that the cost will not 
exceed the contract amount of $14,500 (the contract allows for additional charges if the 
CCSD’s records are not in good order and/or additional audit procedures other than as 
normally required are needed).  $15,000 was budgeted.  It is also noted that Robert (Bob) 
Crosby, CPA, provided additional services for CCSD Staff at no additional cost during the past 
year. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A draft of the CCSD’s CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 is attached for review. 
Bob Crosby, CPA, will present a brief summary of the audit and respond to questions and 
comments from the Board of Directors.  
 
The fourth section of the Independent Auditors’ Report is the auditors’ opinion of the CCSD’s 
financial statements and adequacy of internal controls. The auditors issued an unqualified 
opinion, which states that as of June 30, 2014, the financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the governmental and business-type activities of the 
CCSD. 
 
The CCSD implemented the requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement (GASB) No. 34 as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. A component of GASB 
34 is a Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), which is incorporated in the CAFR. It is 
not a required component of the financial statements, but becomes supplemental information 
required by GASB.  While the auditor is not responsible for the MD&A, he does apply certain 
limited procedures to it. 
 

76



 
 

 

The CCSD implemented the requirements of the GASB No. 45 as of the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2010, which required an OPEB (Other Post Employment Benefits) analysis. 
 
While the General Fund had a surplus of expenditures over revenues of $35,195, it had a 
decrease in its Cash and Investments balance of $2,038,573.  The difference is mainly the 
result of loaning cash to the Water Fund for expenditures for the Emergency Water System.   
Both of the CCSD enterprise funds had a net operating loss (Water’s was $948,709 and 
Wastewater’s was $571,166).  The Water Fund had a net negative cash flow for the fiscal year 
of $104,880 and the Wastewater Fund had a positive cash flow of $138,626.  The main 
reasons for the negative cash flow in the Water Fund was related to large expenditures on 
capital assets and the net operating loss.  The main reasons for the positive cash flows in the 
Wastewater Fund, while incurring net operating losses, is due to depreciation (an expense not 
directly related to cash spent during the 2013/2014 fiscal year).  These are detailed on the 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS on page 12 of the CAFR. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: Draft FY 2013/2014 CAFR  
   
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ ROBINETTE ___ CLIFT ___ BAHRINGER ___ THOMPSON ___ RICE 

77



2nd Draft78



2nd Draft79



2nd Draft80



2nd Draft81



2nd Draft82



2nd Draft83



2nd Draft84



2nd Draft85



2nd Draft86



2nd Draft87



2nd Draft88



2nd Draft89



2nd Draft90



2nd Draft91



2nd Draft92



2nd Draft93



2nd Draft94



2nd Draft95



2nd Draft96



2nd Draft97



2nd Draft98



2nd Draft99



2nd Draft100



2nd Draft101



2nd Draft102



2nd Draft103



2nd Draft104



2nd Draft105



2nd Draft106



2nd Draft107



2nd Draft108



2nd Draft109



2nd Draft110



2nd Draft111



2nd Draft112



2nd Draft113



2nd Draft114



2nd Draft115



2nd Draft116



2nd Draft117



2nd Draft118



2nd Draft119



2nd Draft120



2nd Draft121



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 9.B. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 29, 2015  Subject:   Discussion and Consideration of  
         Proposed 2015 Board Goals,  
         Ad Hoc Committee and Director  
         Assignments 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors discuss Board Goals and make any necessary 
appointments for Ad Hoc Committees and Director Assignments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Board Goals:  
 
Goals that are being considered by the Board have in part been incorporated into the 
2014/2015 Fiscal Year Budget. Once the goals are agreed upon, adjustments to the 
2014/2015 Fiscal Year Mid-Year Budget will be recommended for consideration by the Board. 
The Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Mid-Year Budget adjustment will be brought to the Board at the 
February meeting. Additional allocations that may be required will be incorporated into the 
2015/2016 Fiscal Year Budget for consideration by the Board of Directors as part of the budget 
process. 
  
Committees: 
 
Miscellaneous costs associated with staff time, document preparation and any necessary 
research required for each committee. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
President Robinette will lead the discussion regarding the proposed Board Goals and the Ad 
Hoc Committees, and the proposed appointments of Directors to each committee. The 
following is a review of the three major goals proposed by President Robinette and the 
proposed Ad Hoc Committees and their tasks, which are to be considered by the Board. 
 
Proposed Board Goals: 
 

• Obtain a Regular Coastal Development Permit for the Brackish Water Treatment Facility 
(BWTF). 

• Assess, prioritize, and determine actual costs and potential funding sources for the First 
Phase of the Wastewater Treatment Plant infrastructure improvements. 

• Determine funding sources for the First Phase to implement and complete needed 
projects related to access to the Community Park including grading and swells. 
 

122



 
 

 2

Proposed Committees:  
 

• 2015-16 Budget Ad Hoc Committee: President Robinette and Vice President Clift  
 

Task:  Review the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. Meet periodically to 
review and discuss adopted budget.  
 

• Water Permitting Ad Hoc Committee:  President Robinette and Director Thompson 
 

Task:  Review and identify essential issues relating to Water Supply Permitting and 
related matters with focus on the BWTF Regular Coastal Development Permit. 

 
• Wastewater Plant Improvement Ad Hoc Committee:  Director Bahringer and Director 

Rice 
 

Task:  Review issues relating to the Wastewater Treatment Plant improvements and 
related matters and develop the First Phase implementation plan. 

 
• Conservation Ad Hoc Committee: Director Bahringer and Director Rice 

 
Task: Meet periodically to discuss and recommend Water Conservation best practices 

for the District’s Enhanced Water Conservation Measures and related items. 
 

• Park’s Recreation and Open Space (PROs) Ad Hoc Committee:  Vice President Clift 
and Director Thompson  
 

• By-Laws Ad Hoc Committee: Vice President Clift and Director Thompson 
 
Task: review existing By-Laws and make recommendations to the CCSD Board of 

Directors regarding changes and adoption of the By-Laws to be presented during the February 
26, 2015 Board of Directors meeting.  
 

• Liaison Appointment:  
 

PRO’S, Parks, Recreation and Open Space and Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve 
Liaison. 

 
Director Thompson will continue to serve as the liaison to the Parks, Recreation and Open 
Space Commission and Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve.   
 
• Other Liaison Appointments:  As needed  

 
 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:   ___ ROBINETTE ___ CLIFT ___ BAHRINGER ___ THOMPSON ___RICE 

123



 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors     AGENDA NO.  9.C.  
     
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
   
  
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 29, 2015 Subject: Discussion and Consideration of the 
        CCSD Board of Director's Bylaws  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
It is recommended that the Board continue their review and consideration of the Board of 
Directors’ Bylaws 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
At its December meeting the Board of Directors considered the Bylaws that had been adopted 
on March 27, 2014.  After discussion it was decided that each Board Member would submit 
their proposed changes to the District Clerk and have them presented to the Board at the 
January meeting for further discussion and consideration.  There was also discussion of the 
possibility of having an ad hoc committee review the Bylaws.  Accordingly, attached are the 
proposed revisions submitted by Board Members for the Board’s review and consideration. 
 
In addition, Board President Robinette had requested that District Counsel prepare an 
annotated version of the Bylaws referencing with provisions are already covered by State law, 
in order to assist the Board Members in their review.  At the further direction of the President, 
District Counsel has deleted several sections of the Bylaws that are unnecessary since they 
are already governed by State laws.  A redlined copy of the annotated Bylaws showing the 
deletions is attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws 
  Board Member suggested Bylaw changes 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ ROBINETTE ____ CLIFT ____ BAHRINGER ____ THOMPSON ___ RICE ___ 

124



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 1 

 
 
 
 
 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ BYLAWS 

 
1. OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

1.1 The officers of the Board of Directors are the President and Vice 
President.  

 
Several of these provisions are provided for in Government Code Section 
61043(b), which states that “The officers of a board of directors are a president 
and a vice president. The president shall preside over meetings of the board of 
directors and the vice president shall serve in the president’s absence or inability 
to serve.” However, it is appropriate to include these provisions in the Bylaws. 

 
1.2 The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as presiding 

officer at all Board meetings. The President shall have the same 
rights as the other members of the Board in voting, introducing 
motions, resolutions and ordinances, and any discussion. 

 
1.3 In the absence of the President, the Vice President of the Board of 

Directors shall serve as presiding officer over all meetings of the 
Board. If the President and Vice President are both absent, the 
remaining members shall select one among themselves to act as 
presiding officer for the meeting. 

 
1.4 The President and Vice President of the Board shall be elected 

annually at the first regular meeting in December and the term of 
office shall commence immediately upon election and continue until 
replaced. 

 
2. MEETINGS 
 

2.1 Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall commence at 
12:30 p.m. on the fourth Thursday of each calendar month in the 
Veterans’ Memorial Hall located at 1000 Main Street, Cambria 
unless otherwise directed by the Board of Directors. 

 
2.2 Members of the Board of Directors shall attend all regular and 

special meetings of the Board unless there is good cause for their 
absence. 

 
2.3 No Board action may be taken on an item not on the posted 

agenda; provided, however, matters deemed to be emergencies or 

125



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 2 

of an urgent nature may be added to the agenda under the 
procedures of the Brown Act. 

 
Its probably ok to keep Brown Act related requirements in the Bylaws, however, 
the Brown Act already addresses the issue of not being to take action on matters 
not on the agenda and related exceptions (Government Code Section 54954.2) 
 
 

2.4 Pursuant to the Brown Act: 
 

(a) Board Members may briefly respond to statements or 
questions from the public; and 

(b) Board Members may, on their own initiative or in response to 
public questions, ask questions for clarification, provide 
references to staff or other resources for factual information, 
or request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting; and 

(c) The President of the Board or a Board majority in open 
session may take action to direct staff to place a matter on a 
future agenda. 

 
As noted in this section, all of these matters are as provided for in the Brown Act. 
 
 

2.5 The President shall conduct all meetings in a manner consistent 
with the policies of the CCSD. All comments shall be directed to the 
President. The President shall determine the order in which agenda 
items shall be considered for discussion and/or actions taken by the 
Board and shall announce the Board’s decision on all subjects. On 
roll call the maker of the motion shall be called first, the Board 
member seconding the motion shall be called second, and the 
remainder are polled with the President voting last, unless the 
President made the motion or seconded the motion. 

 
2.6 A majority of the total membership of the Board shall constitute a 

quorum for the transaction of business. A majority of the total 
membership of the Board is sufficient to do business, however 
motions must be passed unanimously if only three attend. When 
there is no quorum for a regular meeting, the President, Vice 
President, or any Board member shall adjourn such meeting, or, if 
no Board member is present, the District Clerk shall adjourn the 
meeting. 

 
The first sentence parrots Government Code Section 61045.  As to the second 
sentence, Government Code Section 61045(c) provides that “Except as 
otherwise specifically provided by law, a majority vote of the total membership of 
the board of directors is required for the board of directors to take action.”  As to 
the issue of not having a quorum and adjournment, the last sentence basically 
tracks what is permitted under the Brown Act (Government Code Section 54955) 
 

126



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 3 

 
2.7 A roll call vote if required by law shall be taken upon votes on 

ordinances and resolutions, and shall be entered in the minutes of 
the Board showing those Board members voting aye, voting no and 
those abstaining or absent. Unless a Board member states that 
they are not voting because of a conflict of interest and steps down 
from the dais prior to the discussion of the item, his or her silence 
shall be recorded as an affirmative vote and vote of abstention shall 
be recorded as an abstention. 

 
Government Code Section 61045 (d) provides that the minutes are to record the 
votes on all ordinances, resolutions or motions.  
 

2.8 Any person attending a public meeting of the Board of Directors 
may record the proceedings with an audio or video tape recorder or 
a still or motion picture camera in the absence of a reasonable 
finding that the recording cannot continue without noise, 
illumination, or obstruction of view that constitutes or would 
constitute a disruption of the proceedings. 

 
 
This section basically restates Government Code Section 54953.5, which 
provides a right to audio or video record public meetings… 
. 
 

2.9 All video tape recorders, still and/or motion picture cameras shall 
remain stationary and shall be located and operated from behind 
the public speaker’s podium once the meeting begins. The 
President retains the discretion to alter these guidelines, including 
the authority to require that all video tape recorders, still and/or 
motion picture cameras be located in the back of the room. 

 
3. AGENDAS 
 

3.1 The General Manager, in cooperation with the Board President and 
Vice President, shall prepare an agenda for each regular and 
special meeting of the Board of Directors. The General Manager 
shall establish a CCSD Policy to guide staff in the preparation of 
meeting agendas. 

 
3.2 A block of approximately 20 minutes time shall be set aside to 

receive general public comment. Comments on agendaed items 
should be held until the appropriate item is called. Unless otherwise 
directed by the President, members of the public shall state their 
name and their general place of residence prior to giving their 
comment. Public comment shall be directed to the President of the 
Board and limited to three minutes unless extended or shortened at 
the President’s discretion. 

127



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 4 

 
This section implements Government Code Section 54954.3(b), which provides 
that “The legislative body of a local agency may adopt reasonable regulations to 
ensure that the intent of subdivision (a) is carried out, including, but not limited to, 
regulations limiting the total amount of time allocated for public testimony on 
particular issues and for each individual speaker.”  As to requiring the speaker to 
give their name and place of residence, under First Amendment principles and 
Government Code Section 54953.3 (which restricts requiring registering names 
as a condition of attendance at meetings), this can’t be required and the 
language should be modified to clarify that providing that information is voluntary.   
 
 

3.3 Those items on the CCSD Agenda, which are considered to be of a 
routine and non-controversial nature, are placed on the Consent 
Agenda. These items shall be approved, adopted, and accepted, 
etc. by one motion of the Board of Directors. For example, approval 
of Minutes, approval of Warrants, various Resolutions accepting 
developer improvements, minor budgetary items, status reports, 
and routine CCSD operations. 

(a) Board members may request that any item listed 
under Consent Agenda be removed from the Consent 
Agenda, and the Board will then take action 
separately on that item. A member of the public will 
be given an opportunity to comment on the Consent 
Agenda, however, only a member of the Board of 
Directors can remove an item from the Consent 
Agenda. Items, which are removed (“pulled”) by 
members of the Board for discussion, will typically be 
heard after other Consent Agenda items are approved 
unless the President orders an earlier or later time. 

(b) A Board member may ask questions on any item on 
the Consent Agenda. When a Board member has a 
minor question for clarification concerning a consent 
item, which will not involve extended discussion, the 
item may be discussed for clarification and the 
questions will be addressed along with the rest of the 
Consent Agenda. Board members are encouraged to 
seek clarifications prior to the meeting if possible. 

(c) When a Board member wishes to pull an item simply 
to register a dissenting vote, the Board member shall 
inform the presiding officer that they wish to register a 
dissenting vote without discussion. These items will 
be handled along with the rest of the Consent 
Agenda, and the District Clerk will register a “no” vote 
in the minutes. 

 
4. PREPARATION OF MINUTES AND MAINTENANCE OF TAPES 
 

128



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 5 

4.1 The minutes of the Board shall be kept by the District Clerk 
and shall be neatly produced and kept in a file for that 
purpose, with a record of each particular type of business 
transacted in paragraphs with proper subheadings; 

 
4.2 The District Clerk shall be required to make a record only of 

such business as was actually passed upon by a vote of the 
Board and, except as provided in Section 4.3 and 4.6 below, 
shall not be required to record any remarks of Board 
Members or any other person; 

 
4.3 Any Director may request for inclusion into the minutes brief 

comments pertinent to an agenda item, only at the meeting 
in which the item is discussed. 

 
4.4 Written materials delivered to the Board at the meeting that 

were not contained in the Board Agenda Packet for review 
by the Board prior to the meeting shall not be included in the 
meeting minutes. 

 
4.5 The District Clerk shall attempt to record the names and 

general place of residence of persons addressing the Board, 
the title of the subject matter to which their remarks related, 
and whether they spoke in support or opposition to such 
matter; 

 
4.6 Whenever the Board acts in a quasi-judicial proceeding such 

as in assessment matters, the District Clerk shall compile a 
summary of the testimony of the witnesses. 

 
4.7 Any electronic media of a CCSD meeting made for whatever 

purpose at the direction of the CCSD shall be subject to 
inspection pursuant to the California Public Records Act. 
CCSD tape and film records may be erased ninety (90) days 
after the taping or the recording. 

 
 
Government Code Section 54953.5(b) provides that audio and video recordings 
of open and public meetings are subject to inspection pursuant to the Public 
Records Act and may be erased or destroyed after 30 days. 
 
 

 5. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Directors shall prepare themselves to discuss agenda items at 

meetings of the Board of Directors. Information may be requested 
from staff or exchanged between Directors before meetings. 

  

129



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 6 

5.1 Information that is exchanged before meetings shall be 
distributed through the District Clerk, and all Directors will 
receive all information being distributed. 

 
5.2 Directors shall at all times conduct themselves with courtesy 

to each other, to staff and to members of the audience 
present at Board meetings. 

 
5.3 Differing viewpoints are healthy in the decision-making 

process. Individuals have the right to disagree with ideas 
and opinions, while being respectful. Once the Board of 
Directors takes action, Directors should not create barriers to 
the implementation of said action. 

 
5.4 At the President’s discretion District Counsel shall act as 

parliamentarian. 
 

6. AUTHORITY OF DIRECTORS 
6.1 The Board of Directors is the unit of authority within the 

CCSD. Apart from their normal function as a part of this unit, 
Directors have no individual authority. As individuals, 
Directors may not commit the CCSD to any policy, act or 
expenditure. 

 
6.2 Directors do not represent any fractional segment of the 

community, but are, rather, a part of the body, which 
represents and acts for the community as a whole. 

 
6.3 The primary responsibility of the Board of Directors is the 

formulation and evaluation of policy. Routine matters 
concerning the operational aspects of the CCSD are to be 
referred to the General Manager. 

 
This is consistent with Government Code Section 61040(a) which provides that 
the Board is to establish policies and implementation is the responsibility of the 
General Manager. 
 

7. DIRECTOR GUIDELINES 
7.1 Board Members, by making a request to the General 

Manager or District Clerk, shall have access to information 
relative to the operation of the CCSD, including but not 
limited to statistical information, information serving as the 
basis for certain actions of Staff, justification for Staff 
recommendations, etc. If the General Manager or District 
Clerk cannot provide the requested information in a timely 
manner by reason of information deficiency, or major 
interruption in work schedules, workloads, and priorities, 
then the General Manager or District Clerk shall inform the 

130



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 7 

individual Board Member why the information is not or 
cannot be made available. 

 
7.2 In handling complaints from residents, property owners 

within the CCSD, or other members of the public, Directors 
are encouraged to listen carefully to the concerns, but the 
complaint should be referred to the General Manager for 
processing and the CCSD’s response, if any. 

 
7.3 Directors, when seeking clarification of policy-related 

concerns, especially those involving personnel, legal action, 
land acquisition and development, finances, and 
programming, should confer directly with the General 
Manager. 

 
7.4 When approached by CCSD personnel concerning specific 

CCSD policy, Directors should direct inquiries to the General 
Manager or, in their absence, to the District Clerk. The chain 
of command should be followed. 

 
7.5 Directors and General Manager should develop a working 

relationship so that current issues, concerns and CCSD 
projects can be discussed comfortably and openly. 

 
7.6 When responding to constituent request and concerns, 

Directors should respond to individuals in a positive manner 
and route their questions to the General Manager, or in their 
absence, to the District Clerk. 

 
7.7 Directors are responsible for monitoring the CCSD’s 

progress in attaining its goals and objectives, while pursuing 
its mission. 

 
8. DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 

8.1 Directors shall receive compensation of seventy five dollars 
($75.00) for each authorized meeting of the Board attended 
by him/her, or for each day’s service rendered as a Director 
and approved by the Board. 

 
Government Code Section 61047 (a) provides that “The board of directors may 
provide, by ordinance or resolution, that each of its members may receive 
compensation in an amount not to exceed one hundred dollars ($100) for each 
day of service. A member of the board of directors shall not receive 
compensation for more than six days of service in a month.” 
 
 

8.2 The following are authorized meetings for which a Director 
may be compensated: 

131



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 8 

 
(a) Regular Board meetings 

 
(b) Special Board meetings 

 
(c) Advisory or Committee Body meetings 

 
(d) Training and Educational seminars, conferences or 

webinars 
 

(e) Negotiation Sessions 
 

(f) Depositions 
 

(g) Meetings with District consultants, engineers, or other 
professionals for the purpose of conducting District 
business or potential business 

 
(h) Any other activity the Board requests a member attend in 

advance of attendance 
 
8.3 Director compensation shall not exceed six days of service 

in any calendar month. 
 
8.4 In no event shall Director compensation exceed $75 per day, 

or $450 per month. 
 

8.5 Each Board Member is entitled to reimbursement for their 
travel, meals and lodging, and other actual and necessary 
expenses incurred in the performance of the duties required 
or authorized by the Board, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 53232.2. 

 
 
It is the policy of the CCSD to exercise prudence with respect to hotel/motel 
accommodations. It is also the policy of the CCSD for Board members and staff 
to stay at the main hotel/motel location of a conference, seminar, or class to gain 
maximum participation and advantage of interaction with others whenever 
possible.  
 

9. COMMITTEES 
9.1 (a) As is customary with Board meetings, all committees 

shall meet within the jurisdictional boundaries of CCSD 
except, as may be permitted by the Brown Act. 

 
The Brown Act at Government Code Section 54954(b) addresses the issue of 
circumstances when “legislative bodies” may meet outside of the District’s 
boundaries.  If “committees” are legislative bodies for purposes of the Brown Act 
(i.e. standing committees, or other committees whose membership is more than 

132



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 9 

a quorum of the Board), then the Brown Act provisions will control, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54952. 
  

(b) Ad Hoc Committees 
The Board shall appoint such ad hoc committees as may be 
deemed necessary or advisable. The duties of the ad hoc 
committee shall be outlined at the time of appointment, and 
the committee shall be considered dissolved when its final 
report has been made. Ad hoc committees shall meet on an 
as needed basis 
 

9.2 Standing Committees 
(a) The Board may create standing committees at its 

discretion. Standing committees shall be advisory 
committees to the Board of Directors and shall not 
commit the CCSD to any policy, act or expenditure. 
Each standing committee may consider CCSD related 
issues, on a continuing basis, assigned to it by the 
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall 
appoint committee members. 

(b) All standing committees shall be conducted as public 
meetings in accordance with the Brown Act and 
Sections 2, 3 and 4 of these Bylaws. Summary notes 
for each meeting of each committee shall be 
forwarded to the Board of Directors as a public 
record. 

 
Under the Brown Act, the exemption for ad hoc committees is based upon 
Government Code Section 54952(b), and committees with continuing subject 
matter jurisdiction or a formally established fixed meeting schedule are subject to 
the Brown Act. 
 

10. CORRESPONDENCE DISTRIBUTION POLICY 
Time permitting, the following letters and other documents shall be 
accumulated and electronically delivered to the Board of Directors 
and/or with the monthly agenda packet. 
 
10.1 All letters approved by the Board of Directors and/or signed 

by the President on behalf of the CCSD; and 
 
10.2 All letters and other documents received by the CCSD that 

are of CCSD-wide concern as determined by CCSD staff. 
 

10.3 The CCSD General Manager shall establish a policy for 
receiving, processing and distribution of CCSD 
correspondence. 

 
11. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND RELATED POLICY 

133



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 10 

State laws are in place, which attempt to eliminate any action by a 
Board Member or the CCSD that may reflect a conflict of interest. 
The purpose of such laws and regulations is to insure that all 
actions are taken in the public interest. Laws, which regulate 
conflicts, are very complicated. The following provides a brief policy 
summary of various conflict related laws. Directors are encouraged 
to consult with District Legal Counsel and/or the FPPC at (916) 
322-5660, prior to the day of the meeting, if they have a question 
about a particular agenda item. 

 
These Conflict of Interest matters are all comprehensively addressed in State law 
and do not need to be included in Bylaws. 
 

11.1 Conflict of Interest 
Each Director is encouraged to review the CCSD Conflict 
Code on an annual basis. The general rule is that an official 
may not participate in the making of a governmental decision 
if it is: (1) reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have 
a (2) material financial effect on the (3) official or a member 
of his or her immediate family or on an economic interest of 
the official, and (4) the effect is distinguishable from the 
effect on the public generally. Additionally, the FPPC 
regulations relating to interests in real property have recently 
been changed. If the real property in which the Director has 
an interest is located within 500 feet of the boundaries of the 
property affected by decision, that interest is deemed to be 
directly involved in the decision. 
 

11.2 Interest in Contracts, Government Codes Section 1090 
The prohibitions of Government Code Section 1090 provide 
that the Board of Directors may not contract with any 
business in which another Board member has financial 
interest. 
 

11.3 Incompatible Office, Government Code Section 1099 
The basic rule is that public policy requires that when the 
duties of two offices are repugnant or overlap so that their 
exercise may require contradictory or inconsistent action, to 
the detriment of the other public interest, their discharge by 
one person is incompatible with that interest and the first 
office is automatically vacated. 

 
12. BOARD MEMBER VACANCY 
 The Community Services District Law specifically states in  
 Government Code § 61042, subd. (c):  

Any vacancy in the office of a member elected to the board 
of directors shall be filled pursuant to Section 1780.  

 Government Code §1780 states the options for filling a Board 
 vacancy. 

134



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 11 

 
As noted in this section, the process for filling vacancies is set forth in 
Government Code Section 1780.  The notice, posting and other provisions 
that follow are statutory and not necessary.  The 2/3rds vote requirement 
is not in the statute, which provides that the remaining Board members 
can fill the vacancy. Since three affirmative votes are required, that would 
mean a 3/4ths vote of the remaining members to fill a vacancy. 
 
 Should the board of directors choose to fill a vacancy by 
 appointment (allowed by law) the following process in addition to 
 the required actions may include: 
 

12.1 Adopt a resolution calling for posting of Notice of Vacancy. 
 
12.2 The notice is posted in compliance with Government Code  

§1780 which provides that the remaining board members 
may fill the vacancy by appointment and that a notice shall 
be posted at the three CCSD posting locations at least 
fifteen (15) days before the appointment is made.  

 
12.3 The notice may be published in a newspaper of general 

circulation. 
 
12.4 Within 30 days of vacancy notice and receipt of applications 

call a special meeting for applicant interview process.  
 

12.5 The appointment shall be made within 60 days after either 
the date on which the board is notified of the vacancy or the 
effective date of the vacancy, whichever is later. 

 
12.6 At next regular meeting hold nominations to fill the vacancy. 

The successful candidate will receive a motion, second and 
a two thirds majority of votes cast. 

 
12.7 The appointee will take the Oath of Office and is encouraged 

to participate in timely orientation. 
 

13. EVALUATIONS 
The CCSD’s General Manager and District Legal Counsel shall be 
evaluated annually. 
 

14. CONTINUING EDUCATION AND ETHICS TRAINING 
 
14.1 Members of the Board of Directors are encouraged to attend 

educational conferences or webinars and professional 
meetings when the purposes of such activities are to 
improve CCSD operations. Subject to budgetary constraints, 
there is no limit as to the number of Directors attending a 

135



  Annotated redlined CCSD Board Bylaws  
Attachment 1 

 12 

particular conference or seminar when it is determined by 
the Board that their attendance is beneficial to the CCSD. 
 

14.2 Pursuant to sections 53234 et seq. of the Government Code 
all Directors and designated District personnel shall receive 
at least 2 hours of ethics training every two years. 

 
As this section indicates, the ethics training requirement is statutory, as is 
the requirement in the following section regarding new members and 
designated staff receiving ethics training within one year of commencing 
service (Government Code Section 53235.1(b). 
 

14.3 Each newly elected Board member and designated District 
personnel shall receive ethics training no later than one year 
from the first day of service with the District. 

 
15. BOARD BYLAW REVIEW POLICY 

Subject to 3.1 the Board Bylaw Policy shall be reviewed annually at 
the first regular meeting in January and amendments to the Bylaws 
shall be considered for adoption by the Board at the first Regular 
meeting in February. The review shall be provided by District 
Counsel and implemented by Board action. 

 
16. RESTRICTIONS ON RULES 

The rules contained herein are guidelines only and shall govern the 
Board in all cases to which they are applicable, and in which they 
are not inconsistent with State or Federal laws. 

136



   

 1 

 
 
 
 
 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ BYLAWS 

 
1. OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

1.1 The officers of the Board of Directors are the President 
and Vice President.  

 
Several of these provisions are provided for in Government Code 
Section 61043(b), which states that “The officers of a board of 
directors are a president and a vice president. The president shall 
preside over meetings of the board of directors and the vice president 
shall serve in the president’s absence or inability to serve.” However, 
it is appropriate to include these provisions in the Bylaws. 

 
1.2 The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as 

presiding officer at all Board meetings. The President 
shall have the same rights as the other members of the 
Board in voting, introducing motions, resolutions and 
ordinances, and any discussion. 

 
1.3 In the absence of the President, the Vice President of the 

Board of Directors shall serve as presiding officer over all 
meetings of the Board. If the President and Vice 
President are both absent, the remaining members shall 
select one among themselves to act as presiding officer 
for the meeting. 

 
1.4 The President and Vice President of the Board shall be 

elected annually at the first regular meeting in December 
and the term of office shall commence immediately upon 
election and continue until replaced. 

 
2. MEETINGS 
 

2.1 Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall 
commence at 12:30 p.m. on the fourth Thursday of each 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

137



   

 2 

calendar month in the Veterans’ Memorial Hall located at 
1000 Main Street, Cambria unless otherwise directed by 
the Board of Directors. 

 
2.2 Members of the Board of Directors shall attend all regular 

and special meetings of the Board unless there is good 
cause for their absence. 

 
2.3 No Board action may be taken on an item not on the 

posted agenda; provided, however, matters deemed to be 
emergencies or of an urgent nature may be added to the 
agenda under the procedures of the Brown Act. 

 
Its probably ok to keep Brown Act related requirements in the Bylaws, 
however, the Brown Act already addresses the issue of not being to 
take action on matters not on the agenda and related exceptions 
(Government Code Section 54954.2) 
 
 

2.4 Pursuant to the Brown Act: 
 

(a) Board Members may briefly respond to statements 
or questions from the public; and 

(b) Board Members may, on their own initiative or in 
response to public questions, ask questions for 
clarification(to whom?), provide references to staff 
or other resources for factual information, or request 
staff to report back at a subsequent meeting; and 

(c) The President of the Board or a Board majority in 
open session may take action to direct staff to place 
a matter on a future agenda. 

 
As noted in this section, all of these matters are as provided for in the 
Brown Act. 
 
 

2.5 The President shall conduct all meetings in a manner 
consistent with the policies of the CCSD. All comments 
shall be directed to the President. The President shall 
determine the order in which agenda items shall be 
considered for discussion and/or actions taken by the 
Board and shall announce the Board’s decision on all 
subjects. On roll call the maker of the motion shall be 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

138



   

 3 

called first, the Board member seconding the motion shall 
be called second, and the remainder are polled with the 
President voting last, unless the President made the motion or 
seconded the motion. 

 
2.6 A majority of the total membership of the Board shall 

constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. A 
majority of the total membership of the Board is sufficient 
to do business, however motions must be passed 
unanimously if only three attend. When there is no 
quorum for a regular meeting, the President, Vice 
President, or any Board member shall adjourn such 
meeting, or, if no Board member is present, the District 
Clerk shall adjourn the meeting. 

 
The first sentence parrots Government Code Section 61045.  As to 
the second sentence, Government Code Section 61045(c) provides 
that “Except as otherwise specifically provided by law, a majority vote 
of the total membership of the board of directors is required for the 
board of directors to take action.”  As to the issue of not having a 
quorum and adjournment, the last sentence basically tracks what is 
permitted under the Brown Act (Government Code Section 54955) 
 
 

2.7 A roll call vote if required by law shall be taken upon votes 
on ordinances and resolutions, and shall be entered in the 
minutes of the Board showing those Board members 
voting aye, voting no and those abstaining or absent. 
Unless a Board member states that they are not voting 
because of a conflict of interest and steps down from the 
dais prior to the discussion of the item, his or her silence 
shall be recorded as an affirmative vote and vote of 
abstention shall be recorded as an abstention. 

 
Government Code Section 61045 (d) provides that the minutes are to 
record the votes on all ordinances, resolutions or motions.  
 

2.8 Any person attending a public meeting of the Board of 
Directors may record the proceedings with an audio or 
video tape recorder or a still or motion picture camera in 
the absence of a reasonable finding that the recording 
cannot continue without noise, illumination, or obstruction 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

139



   

 4 

of view that constitutes or would constitute a disruption of 
the proceedings. 

 
 
This section basically restates Government Code Section 54953.5, 
which provides a right to audio or video record public meetings… 

. 

 
2.9 All video tape recorders, still and/or motion picture 

cameras shall remain stationary and shall be located and 
operated from behind the public speaker’s podium once 
the meeting begins. The President retains the discretion 
to alter these guidelines, including the authority to require 
that all video tape recorders, still and/or motion picture 
cameras be located in the back of the room. 

 
3. AGENDAS 
 

3.1 The General Manager, in cooperation with the Board 
President and Vice President, shall prepare an agenda for 
each regular and special meeting of the Board of 
Directors. The General Manager shall establish a CCSD 
Policy to guide staff in the preparation of meeting 
agendas. 

 
3.2 A block of approximately 20(or 30) minutes time shall be 

set aside to receive general public comment. Comments 
on agendaed items should be held until the appropriate 
item is called. Unless otherwise directed by the President, 
members of the public shall state their name and their 
general place of residence prior to giving their comment. 
Public comment shall be directed to the President of the 
Board and limited to three minutes unless extended or 
shortened at the President’s discretion. 

 
This section implements Government Code Section 54954.3(b), 
which provides that “The legislative body of a local agency may adopt 
reasonable regulations to ensure that the intent of subdivision (a) is 
carried out, including, but not limited to, regulations limiting the total 
amount of time allocated for public testimony on particular issues and 
for each individual speaker.”  As to requiring the speaker to give their 
name and place of residence, under First Amendment principles and 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

140



   

 5 

Government Code Section 54953.3 (which restricts requiring 
registering names as a condition of attendance at meetings), this 
can’t be required and the language should be modified to clarify that 
providing that information is voluntary.   
 
 

3.3 Those items on the CCSD Agenda, which are considered 
to be of a routine and non-controversial nature, are 
placed on the Consent Agenda. These items shall be 
approved, adopted, and accepted, etc. by one motion of 
the Board of Directors. For example, approval of Minutes, 
approval of Warrants, various Resolutions accepting 
developer improvements, minor budgetary items, status 
reports, and routine CCSD operations. 

(a) Board members may request that any item 
listed under Consent Agenda be removed 
from the Consent Agenda, and the Board will 
then take action separately on that item. A 
member of the public will be given an 
opportunity to comment on the Consent 
Agenda, however, only a member of the 
Board of Directors can remove an item from 
the Consent Agenda. Items, which are 
removed (“pulled”) by members of the Board 
for discussion, will typically be heard after 
other Consent Agenda items are approved 
unless the President orders an earlier or later 
time. 

(b) A Board member may ask questions on any 
item on the Consent Agenda. When a Board 
member has a minor question for clarification 
concerning a consent item, which will not 
involve extended discussion, the item may be 
discussed for clarification and the questions 
will be addressed along with the rest of the 
Consent Agenda. Board members are 
encouraged to seek clarifications prior to the 
meeting if possible. 

(c) When a Board member wishes to pull an item 
simply to register a dissenting vote, the Board 
member shall inform the presiding officer that 
they wish to register a dissenting vote without 
discussion. These items will be handled along 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

141



   

 6 

with the rest of the Consent Agenda, and the 
District Clerk will register a “no” vote in the 
minutes. 

 
4. PREPARATION OF MINUTES AND MAINTENANCE OF 
TAPES 
 

4.1 The minutes of the Board shall be kept by the 
District Clerk and shall be neatly produced and kept 
in a file for that purpose, with a record of each 
particular type of business transacted in paragraphs 
with proper subheadings; 

 
4.2 The District Clerk shall be required to make a record 

only of such business as was actually passed upon 
by a vote of the Board and, except as provided in 
Section 4.3 and 4.6 below, shall not be required to 
record any remarks of Board Members or any other 
person; 

 
4.3 Any Director may request for inclusion into the 

minutes brief comments pertinent to an agenda 
item, only at the meeting in which the item is 
discussed.(clarify: request will be made during time 
item is under discussion) 

 
4.4 Written materials delivered to the Board at the 

meeting that were not contained in the Board 
Agenda Packet for review by the Board prior to the 
meeting shall not be included in the meeting 
minutes. 

 
4.5 The District Clerk shall attempt to record the names 

and general place of residence of persons 
addressing the Board, the title of the subject matter 
to which their remarks related, and whether they 
spoke in support or opposition to such matter; 

 
4.6 Whenever the Board acts in a quasi-judicial 

proceeding such as in assessment matters, the 
District Clerk shall compile a summary of the 
testimony of the witnesses. 

 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

142



   

 7 

4.7 Any electronic media of a CCSD meeting made for 
whatever purpose at the direction of the CCSD shall 
be subject to inspection pursuant to the California 
Public Records Act. CCSD tape and film records 
may be erased ninety (90) days after the taping or 
the recording. 

 
 
Government Code Section 54953.5(b) provides that audio and video 
recordings of open and public meetings are subject to inspection 
pursuant to the Public Records Act and may be erased or destroyed 
after 30 days. 
 
 

 5. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Directors shall prepare themselves to discuss agenda 

items at meetings of the Board of Directors. Information 
may be requested from staff or (clarify this related to 
Brown Act possible violation exchanged between 
Directors before meetings.) 

  
5.1 Information that is exchanged before meetings shall 

be distributed through the District Clerk, and all 
Directors will receive all information being 
distributed. 

 
5.2 Directors shall at all times conduct themselves with 

courtesy to each other, to staff and to members of 
the audience present at Board meetings. 

 
5.3 Differing viewpoints are healthy in the decision-

making process. Individuals have the right to 
disagree with ideas and opinions, while being 
respectful. Once the Board of Directors takes 
action, Directors should not create barriers to the 
implementation of said action. 

 
5.4 At the President’s discretion District Counsel shall 

act as parliamentarian. 
 

6. AUTHORITY OF DIRECTORS 
6.1 The Board of Directors is the unit of authority within 

the CCSD. Apart from their normal function as a 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

143



   

 8 

part of this unit, Directors have no individual 
authority. As individuals, Directors may not commit 
the CCSD to any policy, act or expenditure. 

 
6.2 Directors do not represent any fractional segment of 

the community, but are, rather, a part of the body, 
which represents and acts for the community as a 
whole. 

 
6.3 The primary responsibility of the Board of Directors 

is the formulation and evaluation of policy. Routine 
matters concerning the operational aspects of the 
CCSD are to be referred to the General Manager. 

 
This is consistent with Government Code Section 61040(a) which 
provides that the Board is to establish policies and implementation is 
the responsibility of the General Manager. 
 

7. DIRECTOR GUIDELINES 
7.1 Board Members, by making a request to the 

General Manager (or District Clerk?delete, as 
requested earlier this year by Jerry, not sure??), 
shall have access to information relative to the 
operation of the CCSD, including but not limited to 
statistical information, information serving as the 
basis for certain actions of Staff, justification for 
Staff recommendations, etc. If the General Manager 
or District Clerk cannot provide the requested 
information in a timely manner by reason of 
information deficiency, or major interruption in work 
schedules, workloads, and priorities, then the 
General Manager or District Clerk shall inform the 
individual Board Member why the information is not 
or cannot be made available. 

 
7.2 In handling complaints from residents, property 

owners within the CCSD, or other members of the 
public, Directors are encouraged to listen carefully 
to the concerns, but the complaint should be 
referred to the General Manager for processing and 
the CCSD’s response, if any. 

 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

144



   

 9 

7.3 Directors, when seeking clarification of policy-
related concerns, especially those involving 
personnel, legal action, land acquisition and 
development, finances, and programming, should 
confer directly with the General Manager. 

 
7.4 When approached by CCSD personnel concerning 

specific CCSD policy, Directors should direct 
inquiries to the General Manager or, in their 
absence, to the District Clerk. The chain of 
command should be followed. 

 
7.5 Directors and General Manager should develop a 

working relationship so that current issues, 
concerns and CCSD projects can be discussed 
comfortably and openly. 

 
7.6 When responding to constituent request and 

concerns, Directors should respond to individuals in 
a positive manner and route their questions to the 
General Manager, or in their absence, to the District 
Clerk. 

 
7.7 Directors are responsible for monitoring the CCSD’s 

progress in attaining its goals and objectives, while 
pursuing its mission.(whose goals? Board goals and 
CCSD/department goals must be mutally focused 
and compatible?) 

 
8. DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 

8.1 Directors shall receive compensation of seventy five 
dollars ($75.00) for each authorized meeting of the 
Board attended by him/her, or for each day’s 
service rendered as a Director and approved by the 
Board. (When/how is board member 
authorized/approved by Board to attend meeting??) 

 

Government Code Section 61047 (a) provides that “The board of 
directors may provide, by ordinance or resolution, that each of its 
members may receive compensation in an amount not to exceed one 
hundred dollars ($100)(currently $75) for each day of service. A 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

145



   

 10 

member of the board of directors shall not receive compensation for 
more than six days of service in a month.” 

 
 

8.2 The following are authorized meetings for which a 
Director may be compensated: 

 
(a) Regular Board meetings 

 
(b) Special Board meetings 

 
(c) Advisory or Committee Body meetings(created 

for board input, ie Ad Hoc, board liaisons as 
needed and determined by Board president and 
vice president?)(also, committee must conduct 
business that relates to CCSD jurisdictional 
responsibilities) 

 
(d) (Related) Training and Educational seminars, 

conferences or webinars 
 

(e) Negotiation Sessions 
 

(f) Depositions 
 

(g) Meetings with District consultants, engineers, or 
other professionals for the purpose of conducting 
District business or potential business 

 
(h) Any other activity the Board requests a member 

attend in advance of attendance 
?How/where? to fit in: Board president shall serve as 
primary spokesperson/liaison to represent board position 
to appropriate outside agencies. The board president my 
appoint other board members to serve in this role as 
needed. 
8.3 Director compensation shall not exceed six days of 

service in any calendar month. 
 
8.4 In no event shall Director compensation exceed $75 

per day, or $450 per month. 
 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

146



   

 11 

8.5 Each Board Member is entitled to reimbursement 
for their travel, meals and lodging, and other actual 
and necessary expenses incurred in the 
performance of the duties required andor authorized 
by the Board, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 53232.2. 

 
 
It is the policy of the CCSD to exercise prudence with respect to 
hotel/motel accommodations. It is also the policy of the CCSD for 
Board members and staff to stay at the main hotel/motel location of a 
conference, seminar, or class to gain maximum participation and 
advantage of interaction with others whenever possible.  
 

9. COMMITTEES 
9.1 (a) As is customary with Board meetings, all 

committees shall meet within the jurisdictional 
boundaries of CCSD except, as may be permitted 
by the Brown Act. 

 
The Brown Act at Government Code Section 54954(b) addresses the 
issue of circumstances when “legislative bodies” may meet outside of 
the District’s boundaries.  If “committees” are legislative bodies for 
purposes of the Brown Act (i.e. standing committees, or other 
committees whose membership is more than a quorum of the Board), 
then the Brown Act provisions will control, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54952. 
  

(b) Ad Hoc Committees 
The Board shall appoint such ad hoc committees as 
may be deemed necessary or advisable. The duties 
of the ad hoc committee shall be outlined at the time 
of appointment, and the committee shall be 
considered dissolved when its final report has been 
made. Ad hoc committees shall meet on an as 
needed basis 
 

9.2 Standing Committees 
(a) The Board may create standing committees at 

its discretion. Standing committees shall be 
advisory committees to the Board of Directors 
and shall not commit the CCSD to any policy, 
act or expenditure. Each standing committee 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

147



   

 12 

may consider CCSD related issues, on a 
continuing basis, assigned to it by the Board 
of Directors. The Board of Directors shall 
appoint committee members. 

(b) All standing committees shall be conducted as 
public meetings in accordance with the Brown 
Act and Sections 2, 3 and 4 of these Bylaws. 
Summary notes for each meeting of each 
committee shall be forwarded to the Board of 
Directors as a public record. 

 
Under the Brown Act, the exemption for ad hoc committees is based 
upon Government Code Section 54952(b), and committees with 
continuing subject matter jurisdiction or a formally established fixed 
meeting schedule are subject to the Brown Act. 
 

10. CORRESPONDENCE DISTRIBUTION POLICY 
Time permitting, the following letters and other documents 
shall be accumulated and electronically delivered to the 
Board of Directors and/or with the monthly agenda 
packet. 
 
10.1 All letters approved by the Board of Directors and/or 

signed by the President on behalf of the CCSD; and 
 
10.2 All letters and other documents received by the 

CCSD that are of CCSD-wide concern as 
determined by CCSD staff. 

 
10.3 The CCSD General Manager shall establish a policy 

for receiving, processing and distribution of CCSD 
correspondence. 

 
11. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND RELATED POLICY 

State laws are in place, which attempt to eliminate any 
action by a Board Member or the CCSD that may reflect a 
conflict of interest. The purpose of such laws and 
regulations is to insure that all actions are taken in the 
public interest. Laws, which regulate conflicts, are very 
complicated. The following provides a brief policy 
summary of various conflict related laws. Directors are 
encouraged to consult with District Legal Counsel and/or 
the FPPC at (916) 322-5660, prior to the day of the 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

148



   

 13 

meeting, if they have a question about a particular 
agenda item. 

 
These Conflict of Interest matters are all comprehensively addressed 
in State law and do not need to be included in Bylaws. 
 

11.1 Conflict of Interest 
Each Director is encouraged to review the CCSD 
Conflict Code on an annual basis. The general rule 
is that an official may not participate in the making 
of a governmental decision if it is: (1) reasonably 
foreseeable that the decision will have a (2) material 
financial effect on the (3) official or a member of his 
or her immediate family or on an economic interest 
of the official, and (4) the effect is distinguishable 
from the effect on the public generally. Additionally, 
the FPPC regulations relating to interests in real 
property have recently been changed. If the real 
property in which the Director has an interest is 
located within 500 feet of the boundaries of the 
property affected by decision, that interest is 
deemed to be directly involved in the decision. 
 

11.2 Interest in Contracts, Government Codes Section 
1090 
The prohibitions of Government Code Section 1090 
provide that the Board of Directors may not contract 
with any business in which another Board member 
has financial interest. 
 

11.3 Incompatible Office, Government Code Section 
1099 
The basic rule is that public policy requires that 
when the duties of two offices are repugnant or 
overlap so that their exercise may require 
contradictory or inconsistent action, to the detriment 
of the other public interest, their discharge by one 
person is incompatible with that interest and the first 
office is automatically vacated. 

 
12. BOARD MEMBER VACANCY 
 The Community Services District Law specifically states 
in   Government Code § 61042, subd. (c):  

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

149



   

 14 

Any vacancy in the office of a member elected to 
the board of directors shall be filled pursuant to 
Section 1780.  

 Government Code §1780 states the options for filling a 
Board  vacancy. 
 
As noted in this section, the process for filling vacancies is set 
forth in Government Code Section 1780.  The notice, posting 
and other provisions that follow are statutory and not 
necessary.  The 2/3rds vote requirement is not in the statute, 
which provides that the remaining Board members can fill the 
vacancy. Since three affirmative votes are required, that would 
mean a 3/4ths vote of the remaining members to fill a vacancy. 
 
 Should the board of directors choose to fill a vacancy by 
 appointment (allowed by law) the following process in 
addition to  the required actions may include: 
 

12.1 Adopt a resolution calling for posting of Notice of 
Vacancy. 

 
12.2 The notice is posted in compliance with 

Government Code  
§1780 which provides that the remaining board 
members may fill the vacancy by appointment and 
that a notice shall be posted at the three CCSD 
posting locations at least fifteen (15) days before 
the appointment is made.  

 
12.3 The notice may be published in a newspaper of 

general circulation. 
 
12.4 Within 30 days of vacancy notice and receipt of 

applications call a special meeting for applicant 
interview (and selection process if a qualified 
applicant interviews).  

 
12.5 The appointment shall be made within 60 days after 

either the date on which the board is notified of the 
vacancy or the effective date of the vacancy, 
whichever is later. 

 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

150



   

 15 

12.6 At next regular meeting hold nominations to fill the 
vacancy. The successful candidate will receive a 
motion, second and a two thirds majority of votes 
cast.(not if 12.4 is followed) 

 
12.7 The appointee will take the Oath of Office and is 

encouraged to participate in timely orientation. 
 

13. EVALUATIONS 
The CCSD’s General Manager and District Legal Counsel 
shall be evaluated annually. 
 

14. CONTINUING EDUCATION AND ETHICS TRAINING 
 
14.1 Members of the Board of Directors are encouraged 

to attend educational conferences or webinars and 
professional meetings when the purposes of such 
activities are to improve CCSD operations. Subject 
to budgetary constraints, there is no limit as to the 
number of Directors attending a particular 
conference or seminar when it is determined by the 
Board that their attendance is beneficial to the 
CCSD. 
 

14.2 Pursuant to sections 53234 et seq. of the 
Government Code all Directors and designated 
District personnel shall receive at least 2 hours of 
ethics training every two years. 

 
As this section indicates, the ethics training requirement is 
statutory, as is the requirement in the following section 
regarding new members and designated staff receiving ethics 
training within one year of commencing service (Government 
Code Section 53235.1(b). 
 

14.3 Each newly elected Board member and designated 
District personnel shall receive ethics training no 
later than one year from the first day of service with 
the District. 

 
15. BOARD BYLAW REVIEW POLICY 

Subject to 3.1 the Board Bylaw Policy shall be reviewed 
annually at the first regular meeting in January and 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

151



   

 16 

amendments to the Bylaws shall be considered for 
adoption by the Board at the first Regular meeting in 
February. The review shall be provided by District 
Counsel and implemented by Board action. 

 
16. RESTRICTIONS ON RULES 

The rules contained herein are guidelines only and shall 
govern the Board in all cases to which they are 
applicable, and in which they are not inconsistent with 
State or Federal laws. 

President Robinette SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

152



Vice President Clift SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

153



1

Monique Madrid

From: James Bahringer <jim@fogsend.com>
Sent: Sunday, January 18, 2015 9:39 PM
To: Monique Madrid
Subject: Re: By Law suggested revision submittal due date

Ton’s of notes and issues on the  By Laws ->    yet at the end of the day, the by-laws are the least of the issues 
we face. 
The only thing that I would revise is in section 8.1 to read $100 per -> and total -> etc” 
Jim 
 

On Jan 14, 2015, at 9:48 AM, Monique Madrid <mmadrid@cambriacsd.org> wrote: 
 
Good Morning, 
  
Our distribution date for the January 29 board agenda is on Friday, January 23.  It would be extremely 
helpful if you  
Have any bylaw revisions if you would please submit them to me by Tuesday, January 20 at 12:00 p.m. 
  
Monique Madrid 
Administrative Services Officer 
Cambria Community Services District 
805‐927‐6117 

 

Director Bahringer SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

154



DRAFT --- DRAFT --- DRAFT --- DRAFT--- DRAFT -- DRAFT  
 

Page 1 of 5 

 

BYLAWS OF THE 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Article I. NAME 
The Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) was formed in 1978, with powers as provided by the 

Community Services District Law. 

Article II. PURPOSE 

The purpose of CCSD is to provide services to the Cambria Community consistent with the General 

Plan, Master Plan, Specific Plan, the Development Agreements, the Public Service Allocation Agreement 

with San Joaquin County, the Master Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreements, and the resulting 

subdivision maps. 

Article III. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 1 Responsibility  
The Board shall govern the District; the Board establishes policies for the operation of the District. The 

Board shall provide for the implementation of the policies, which is the responsibility of the General 

Manager. 

Section 2 Election and Number 
The governing body of the District consists of five (5) elected Directors.  Directors are elected at-large 

and serve staggered four year terms under the provisions of the Community Services District law 

(§61000) 

Section 3 Compensation 
Compensation and reimbursement for expenses for Directors complies with Government Code §61047 

et seq.   

[NOTE: If it is appropriate, I’d like to use the language above, rather than including the code into the bylaws 

word by word. I’ve included the text here for your convenience, in case it must be included in below. At the 

CSDA training workshop, in bylaws that include §61047(a) they recommend including §61047(e) et seq ] 

61047. (a)  The board of directors may provide, by ordinance or resolution, that each of its members may 

receive compensation in an amount not to exceed one hundred dollars ($100) for each day of service. A 

member of the board of directors may not receive compensation for more than six days of service in a 

month.  

(b)  The board of directors, by ordinance adopted pursuant to Chapter 2(commencing with Section 20200) 

of Division 10 of the Water Code, may increase the amount of compensation that may be received by 

members of the board of directors. 

(c)  The board of directors may provide, by ordinance or resolution, that its members may receive their 

actual and necessary traveling and incidental expenses incurred while on official business. Reimbursement 

for these expenses is subject to Sections 53232.2 and 53232.3. 

(d)  A member of the board of directors may waive any or all of the payments permitted by this section. 

(e)  For the purposes of this section, a “day of service” means any of the following: 

Director Rice SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

155



DRAFT --- DRAFT --- DRAFT --- DRAFT--- DRAFT -- DRAFT  
 

Page 2 of 5 

 

(1)  A meeting conducted pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act, Chapter9 (commencing with Section 

54950) of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5. 

(2)  Representation of the district at a public event, provided that the board of directors has previously 

approved the member’s representation at a board of directors’ meeting and that the member delivers a 

written report to the board of directors regarding the member’s representation at the next board of 

directors’ meeting following the public event.  

(3)  Representation of the district at a public meeting or a public hearing conducted by another public 

agency, provided that the board of directors has previously approved the member’s representation at a 

board of directors’ meeting and that the member delivers a written report to the board of directors 

regarding the member’s representation at the next board of directors’ meeting following the public 

meeting or public hearing. 

(4)  Representation of the district at a meeting of a public benefit nonprofit corporation on whose 

board the district has membership, provided that the board of directors has previously approved the 

member’s representation at a board of directors’ meeting and the member delivers a written report to 

the board of directors regarding the member’s representation at the next board of directors’ meeting 

following the corporation’s meeting. 

(5)  Participation in a training program on a topic that is directly related to the district, provided that 

the board of directors has previously approved the member’s participation at a board of directors’ 

meeting, and that the member delivers a written report to the board of directors regarding the 

member’s participation at the next board of directors’ meeting following the training program. 

Section 4 Resignation. 
A Director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, to the President, or to the 

District Clerk. Any resignation will take effect on the date received or at any later time specified in the 

notice; and, unless otherwise specified, the acceptance of the resignation is not necessary to make it 

effective. 

Section 5 Vacancies. 
Vacancies on the Board must be filled in accordance with Government Code §1780.  

Article IV. ELECTED OFFICERS. 

Section 1 Officers 
The elected officers will be chosen by the Board from among the five (5) members of the Board and 

shall consist of a President and a Vice-President. 

Section 2 Terms of  Officers. 
The President and Vice President of the Board shall be elected annually at the first regular meeting in 

December and the term of office shall commence immediately upon election and continue until 

replaced. 

Section 3 Duties of Officers. 

A. President 

1. The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as chairperson at all Board 

meetings. The President shall have the same rights as the other members of the 

Board in voting, introducing motions, resolutions and ordinances, and any 

discussion of questions that follow.  

Director Rice SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

156



DRAFT --- DRAFT --- DRAFT --- DRAFT--- DRAFT -- DRAFT  
 

Page 3 of 5 

 

B. Vice-President 

1. Shall serve as chairperson in the absence of the President. 

Article V. BOARD COMMITTEES 

Section 1 Ad Hoc Committees  
The President or a majority of the Board may create ad hoc committees from time to time with 

specific focus and duration as required.  Such committees shall include no more than two 

Directors, either as assigned members or as meeting participants. 

Section 2 Standing Committees and Duties  
The following standing committees of the board of directors are hereby established for the purpose of 

reviewing the subject designated generally below: 

A. Finance:  Responsible for financial and budgetary matters.  

B. Infrastructure:  Responsible for long term plans for the development and maintenance of the 

district relating to infrastructure. (Water and Wastewater) 

C. Emergency Services: Responsible for and policies relating to the Fire Department 

Section 3 Composition and Appointment 
The Board President shall appoint and publicly announce the members of the standing 

committees for the ensuing year no later than the Board's regular meeting in January. 

Each standing committee shall be composed of not more than two (2) board members 

appointed annually by the president. One member shall serve as chair of the committee. The 

committee chair schedules the meetings and sets the agenda with the general manager. The 

committee shall report to the board from time to time, as directed by the president. 

Section 4 Compliance With Statute 
All standing committees shall comply with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act 

concerning the calling of public meetings. Per Brown Act requirements, committees will not 

include more than two Directors at any one time, either as assigned members or as meeting 

participants. 

Article VI. GENERAL MANAGER 

Section 1 Appointment, Service and Compensation 

The board of directors shall appoint a general manager to run the day to day business of the 

District and implement Board Policies. The board of directors shall set the compensation, if 

any. The General Manager shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. 

Section 2  
The Board of Directors shall evaluate the General Manager on an annual basis.  

 

 

Director Rice SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

157



DRAFT --- DRAFT --- DRAFT --- DRAFT--- DRAFT -- DRAFT  
 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Article VII. BOARD PROCEEDINGS 

Section 1 Regular Meetings.   
Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held monthly at a reasonable time and 

place to be determined by the Board of Directors. The day, time, and location of regular 

meetings of the Board shall be as set forth by Resolution annually. 

Section 2  Ralph M. Brown Act.   
The Board shall hold its meetings in the manner required by the Ralph M. Brown Act.  (See Ca 

Gov Code 54950 et. seq)  

Section 3 Posting Notice.    
Notices and other items required to be posted by law or Board direction shall be posted on 

bulletin board at the Veteran’s Memorial Hall, in the window of the District Office, and on the 

District’s website.  

Section 4 Attendance 
Members of the Board of Directors shall attend all regular and special meetings of the Board 

unless there is good cause for their absence.  

A majority of the total membership of the Board is sufficient to do business, however motions 

must be passed unanimously if only three attend. When there is no quorum for a regular 

meeting, the President, Vice President, or any Board member shall adjourn such meeting, or, if 

no Board member is present, the District Clerk shall adjourn the meeting. 

Section 5 Meetings to be Informal; Robert’s Rules of Order.  
It is the intent of the Board that meetings shall remain as informal as reasonably possible, 

consistent with the business needs of the District.  Failure to comply with these rules shall not 

invalidate an otherwise lawful action of the Board. Nevertheless, whenever the President, or a 

majority of the Board, deems it necessary for the orderly conduct of business, formal 

proceedings may be initiated. In such case, the meeting shall be conducted pursuant to 

Robert’s Rules of Order except as otherwise provided in this Chapter.  

Section 6 Public Comment.   
At every regular meeting, members of the public shall have an opportunity to address the 

Board on matters within the District's jurisdiction and not otherwise on the agenda.  Except for 

matters scheduled for formal public hearing, public input and other matters on the posted 

agenda, public comment on matters not on the agenda shall be made during the time set aside 

for public comment. Each speaker shall limit his remarks to three (3) minutes, subject to the 

President’s discretion.  

Section 7 Limitations on Board Action 
No Board action may be taken on an item not on the posted agenda; provided, however, 

matters deemed to be emergencies or of an urgent nature may be added to the agenda under 

the procedures of the Brown Act. 

 

 

Director Rice SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

158



DRAFT --- DRAFT --- DRAFT --- DRAFT--- DRAFT -- DRAFT  
 

Page 5 of 5 

 

Section 8 Manner of Voting.  
The Board shall act only by ordinance, resolution or motion. The minutes of the Board shall 

record the ayes, noes  and members present not voting for the passage of all ordinances, 

resolutions or motions.  An abstention shall be recorded as an abstention and shall have the 

effect of a non-vote.  

Section 9 Agenda Preparation 
The General Manager, in cooperation with the Board President and Vice President, shall 

prepare an agenda for each regular and special meeting of the Board of Directors.  Any 

Director’s request to place an item on the agenda must be approved by the President or a 

majority of the Board members. 

Article VIII. AMENDMENTS  

Section 1 The Bylaws of the District shall be amended only with the approval of, at least, 

three Directors of the District at a regular or special meeting. 

 

Passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District 

at its regular meeting this ____________day of __________________,2014 by the 

following Vote: 

 

 

 

Suggested for discussion: 

(to be included with reimbursement of expenses?) 

Health benefits. Each Board member may have the option of either:   

(1) Obtaining health insurance independently and paying the premium. In which case the Board 

member may submit monthly proof of payment to the District for reimbursement up to 50%  of the 

District’s contribution for employee and dependent coverage, or,    

(2) Having health insurance coverage through their spouse’s employer or from other employment. In 

which case the Board member may submit monthly proof of any premium not paid by the spouse’s or 

his/her employer for reimbursement up to 50%  of  the District’s contribution for employee and 

dependent coverage, or,   

(3) Selecting coverage under the District’s basic plan. In which case the District will pay the premium 

directly up to an amount equivalent to 50% of the District’s contribution for employee and dependent 

coverage.   

 

Question: why are committees appointed by calendar year vs fiscal year?  

Director Rice SR 9 C Attachment 2 Director suggested revisions

159



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 9. D. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 29, 2015  Subject:   Discussion and Consideration of  
         Whether to Implement the  
         Emergency Water Supply  
         Operating Charge Associated  
         with the Startup of the   
         Emergency Water Supply   
         Project.  
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the CCSD Board of Directors consider two alternatives relating to the 
implementation of the Emergency Water Supply Operating Charge associated with the startup 
of the Emergency Water Supply Project (EWS).  
 
Alternative No. 1- implement the Emergency Water Supply Operating Charge for the 
Emergency Water Supply Project. This alternative would result in $ 135,000 in additional 
revenue for the District. 
 
Alternative No. 2- Choose not to implement the Emergency Water Supply Operating Charge 
for the Emergency Water Supply Project. This alternative would result in $ 135,000 less in 
revenue for the District.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
 The alternative the CCSD Board of Directors chooses will determine the financial impact to 
the District. If fees are implemented the results will be an additional $ 135,000 to the CCSD. If 
fee’s are not implemented the District will receive $ 135,000 les in revenue.  
 
Discussion:  
 
The Emergency Water Project Charges that have been approved by the Board of Directors 
includes an Emergency Water Supply Operating Charge, which is only charged during billing 
periods of anticipated facility operation.  Recently, the Water Alternatives Ad-hoc Committee 
met to discuss and be brought up to date on the progress of the EWS. A brief discussion 
ensued relating to the appropriateness and feasibility of charging Cambrians the Emergency 
Water Supply Operating Charge for the EWS during the initial startup. The following reasons 
were expressed for not imposing the fees for the initial startup phase of operations. The Water 
Alternatives Ad-hoc Committee is recommending that the fee not be imposed at this time, 
however, the Committee wants the entire Board of Directors to further deliberate the matter.  
 

160



 
 

 2

1. Since the initial startup of the EWS is to make sure the system in its entirety is 
functioning properly, the necessity to resolve and troubleshoot any problems, it may be 
appropriate for the Board to consider not imposing the Emergency Water Supply 
Operating Charge at this time.  

2. The CCSD has intentionally chosen to operate the EWS for a three month period of 
time instead of running the system for a shorter period of time and then turning it off. 
This decision was made for operational purposes. 

3. Current well levels as of January 12, 2015 are as follows. The Santa Rosa SR4 Well is 
at 51.50 feet. The Santa Rosa Well 3 is at 30.79 feet. The average Well level for the 
San Simeon Wells is 20.49 feet. Based upon those well levels, the District could choose 
to provide the community all of its potable water supply from both the Santa Rosa and 
San Simeon wells, instead of using the EWS.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:   ___ ROBINETTE ___ CLIFT ___ BAHRINGER ___ THOMPSON ___RICE ___ 
 

161



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 9.E.  
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager   
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: January 29, 2015  Subject: Consideration and Vote on the Election  
        for a Special District Representative on 
        the Local Agency Formation   
        Commission (LAFCO). 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider and vote on the election for a Special 
District representative on the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No fiscal impact has been identified regarding this matter. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Local Agency Formation Commission is comprised of seven regular members: two County 
Board of Supervisors, two City Council Members, two Special District Members, and one 
Public Member.  Attached is correspondence from David Church, Executive Director of the 
San Luis Obispo LAFCO, regarding voting for one of the Special District Members. As 
indicated in the attachment, each Independent Special District may vote for one nominee. The 
vote by a District is required to be considered by the District’s Board of Directors as an item 
placed on its agenda and its selection must be submitted to the LAFCO office no later than 
January 31, 2015. 
 
Two individuals have been nominated for the LAFCO Special District Member position, and 
their ballot statements are included in Mr. Church’s correspondence. The term for this position 
expires in December 2018. The two candidates are: 
 
-- Barbara Bronson Gray, Cambria Healthcare District 
 
-- Marshall Ochylski, Los Osos Community Services District 
 
The balloting process provides for electronic submission of the Board’s selection as set forth in 
Mr. Church’s letter.  Accordingly, staff recommends that the Board of Directors vote on one of 
the two nominees and staff will then submit the selection to LAFCO by the January 31, 2015 
deadline. 
 
Attachments:  Correspondence from David Church regarding ballot for LAFCO Special  
   District Member 
   
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ ROBINETTE ___CLIFT___BAHRINGER ___ THOMPSON ___RICE 

162



 
  
 

 

TO: EACH INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICT 

FROM:  DAVID CHURCH, AICP, EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

DATE:  DECEMBER 4, 2014 

SUBJECT: BALLOT FOR LAFCO SPECIAL DISTRICT MEMBER 

Two individuals have been nominated for the LAFCO Special District position. 
The term for this position would expire in December 2018.  The District’s Board of 
Director’s may select one of the following nominees: 

 

����  Barbara Bronson Gray, Cambria Healthcare District 

����  Marshall Ochylski, Los Osos Community Services District 
 

District:____________________________________________________ 
 
Agenda Date:_______________________________________________ 
 

General Manager or President:__________________________________ 
 

E-Mailed Ballot. The Government Code allows for the balloting to be conducted 
electronically by the LAFCO Executive Officer if it is not possible for the Selection 
Committee to achieve a quorum. The Special Districts Selection Committee 
agrees that completing the election electronically is appropriate because attaining 
a quorum is not possible.   

 

Ballot Instructions. Each Independent Special District may vote for one 
nominee. The vote by a District must be considered by the District’s Board of 
Directors as an item placed on its agenda. The District’s selection must be 
submitted to the LAFCO office no later than January 31, 2015 via one of the 
following ways:  

 

1) An email indicating the Board’s meeting date, an attached agenda, and 
nominee selection considered by the Board of Directors;  

 

2) A scanned pdf of this completed ballot attached to an email with one of 
the nominees selected and the meeting date it was considered, or  

 

3) A fax of the ballot with a cover memo sent to LAFCO with one of the 
nominees selected and the agenda date of the Board’s decision. FAX 
number 805-788-2072.   

 

Please contact me directly at 788-2096 or dchurch@slolafco.com if you have any 
questions. Thank you. 
 
cc:  Members, Formation Commission 

LAFCO - San Luis Obispo - Local Agency Formation Commission 
SLO LAFCO - Serving the Area of San Luis Obispo County 

    

CCCCOMMISSIONERSOMMISSIONERSOMMISSIONERSOMMISSIONERS    

Chairman 

ROBERTA FONZI 

City Member 

 

Vice-Chairman 

TOM MURRAY 

Public Member 

 

MURIL CLIFT 

Special District Member 

 

BRUCE GIBSON 

County Member 

 

FRANK MECHAM 

County Member 

 

MARSHALL OCHYLSKI 

Special District Member 

 

DUANE PICANCO 

City Member 

 

 

AAAALTERNATESLTERNATESLTERNATESLTERNATES    

 

ROBERT ENNS 

Special District Member 

 

DAVID BROOKS 

Public Member 

 

ADAM HILL 

County Member 

 

Kris Vardas 

City Member 

 

SSSSTAFFTAFFTAFFTAFF    

 

DAVID CHURCH, AICP 

Executive Officer 

 

RAYMOND A. BIERING 

Legal Counsel 

 

MIKE PRATER 

Analyst 

 

DONNA J. BLOYD 
Commission Clerk 

163



Barbara Bronson Gray 

Statement of Qualifications, Special District Representative 

I’m running for election as your Special District Representative to LAFCO because I have the 

commitment, leadership experience and community understanding to speak for the interests of Special 

Districts.  

As Vice President of the Cambria Community Healthcare District and trustee for the last several years, I 

understand the kind of representation to LAFCO that special districts need.  Never has the mission of 

LAFCO -- promoting the efficiency of public services while preserving the unparalleled character and 

the agricultural potential of San Luis Obispo – been more critical.   

Still recuperating from the recession and struggling against historic drought conditions, our county’s 

special districts have had to meet significant challenges that have tested their abilities to bring our 

communities together to solve complicated problems.  

As one of two Special District Commissioners on LAFCO, I would reach out to all of the districts on a 

regular basis to ensure my comments and votes represent your views and best interest.  

Background and Qualifications 

• Vice President, Cambria Community Healthcare District 

• Member, Medical Reserve Corps, San Luis Obispo County, and the State of California 

• B.S., M.N. degrees from UCLA 

• Helped lead global communications for Amgen, the biotechnology firm in Thousand Oaks, Calif. 

• Ran the Amgen Foundation 

• Served as a Board Member of the Ventura County Economic Development Association, Boys & 

Girls Clubs of Conejo and Las Virgenes, and the New West Symphony 

• Was responsible for communications for Engineering and the Sciences, UC Santa Barbara 

• Led communications workshops for the Nonprofit Support Center, Santa Barbara 

• Served on the Municipal Advisory Council of Oak Park, an elected body that makes 

recommendations to the Ventura County Supervisor on planning and county services for the 

unincorporated area of about 14,000 people 

• San Luis Obispo County resident since 2005 

Please call me at 927.2276 or email me at bbgray@sbcglobal.net if you would like to know more.   

I ask for your vote.   

  

164



Marshall Ochylski 

 

I am running for re-election as your Special District Representative to LAFCO because I believe I have the 

experience and ability to best represent our Special Districts and our unique needs on that Commission. 

I have been serving as your Commissioner for the past 3 ½ years.  During that time I have diligently 

attended and actively participated in LAFCO Meetings as your Special District representative.  I look 

forward to continuing to represent our Special Districts on the Commission and request your support. 

As one of your two regular Commissioners on LAFCO, I will continue to make decisions that promote the 

efficient use of our limited natural resources and infrastructure capacity, while providing for the 

interests and concerns of each of our Special Districts. 

My record since my election in 2008 and re-election in 2012 as a Director of the Los Osos Community 

Services District, including three as Board President, has proven my ability to listen, learn, and lead on a 

variety of issues - skills that I will continue to bring to LAFCO. 

I sincerely appreciate the previous support I have received from our various Special Districts and ask for 

your District’s vote in this election. 

 

Current Activities: 

Board Member, Los Osos Community Services District 

Commission Member 

Local Area Formation Commission (LAFCO) 

President, California Special Districts Association 

San Luis Obispo County Chapter 

 

165


	Agenda
	Manager's Report
	SR 6 A General Manager's Rpt
	SR 6 A Attachment General Manager's Report Firma Rpt
	SR 6 A GM Administrative Services Officer Rpt January
	SR 6 A Attachment to ASO report
	SR 6 A GM Conservation Rpt
	SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Rpt
	SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 1 well level summaries
	SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 3 SR wells plot
	SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 4 SS wells plot by yr
	SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 5 SS statistical well plot
	SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 7 SS last 5 yrs
	SR 6 A GM Dist Eng Attach 6 SS min max avg
	SR 6 A GM Fin Mgr 1 Rpt-January, 2015
	SR 6 A GM Fire Chief Report January
	SR 6 A GM Fire January 2015 Rpt
	SR 6 GM Rpt Facilities and Resources Report
	SR 6 GM Rpt Facilities and Resources Attachment
	SR 6 A GM Wastewater Supr Jan

	Consideration to Approve the Expenditure Report for December 2014
	SR 7 A Expenditure Report for Month of January, 2015

	Consideration to Approve the Minutes from the December 18, 2014 Board of Director's Meeting
	SR 7 B DRAFT Minutes for Dec 18  2014 Reg Mtg

	Consideration to Authorize Execution of Revised Memorandum of Understanding between the Cambria Community Services District and the Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve Regarding Donations and Merchandise Sales on the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve
	SR 7 C Consideration to Approve Revised MOU between CCSD_FFRP Regarding Donations on FRP
	SR 7 C Attachment revised MOU Between the CCSD and FFRP Regarding Donations and  Sales on FFRP

	Continued Public Hearing Regarding Adoption of Resolution 01-2015 Revising Enhanced Water Conservation Measures, Restrictions on the Use of Potable Water and Maximum Water Use Allotments
	SR 8 A Contiinured  Public Hearing on Use of Water Allotments
	SR 8 A Attachment 1 Reso 01 2015 Revising Enhanced Water Cons Measure relating to Use of Allotment

	Consideration of 2013/2014 Fiscal Year Financial Audit Presentation by Bob Crosby
	SR 9 A Consideration of 2013 2014 FY Financial Audit Presentation by Bob Crosby
	SR 9 A Attachment to Financial Audit

	Discussion and Consideration of Proposed 2015 Board Goals, Ad Hoc Committee and Director Assignments
	SR 9 B Discussion and Consideration of Proposed Board Goals and Committees

	Discussion and Consideration of the CCSD Board of Director's Bylaws
	SR 9 C Consideration of Bylaws January 2015
	SR 9 C 01 Attachment Bylaws (Annotated with State Law References)
	SR 9 C 02 Attachment

	Discussion and Consideration of Whether to Implement the Emergency Water Supply Operating Charge Associated with the Startup of the Emergency Water System Project
	SR 9 D Discussion and Consideration of When to Implement the Operational Rates for the Emergency Water System

	Consideration and Vote on the Election for a Special District Representative on the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)
	SR 9 E Vote for LAFCO Special District Representative
	SR 9 E Attachment Vote for LAFCO Ballot_and_Candidate_Statements


